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Notice is hereby given that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of PERUNGUDI REAL

ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED will be held

at 3.00 p.m. IST on Tuesday, 23" August, 2022

through video conferencing/ other audio visual means (VC/ 'OAVM') to transact the following

business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

%

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 317 March 2022, including the Audited Balance Sheet and
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 317 March 2022, including the Audited Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the

reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby received,
considered and adopted.”

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Arindam Mukherjee (DIN: 08776424), who
retires by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, offers himself for re-
appointment

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), Mr. Arindam Mukherjee (DIN: 08776424), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby

re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3,

Re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar as an Independent Director of the Company
for the second term of five years

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification,
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (the 'Act’)
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof and based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the
Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar (DIN: 00235941) as an Independent Director, not
liable to retire by rotation, for the second term of five years from 18™ January, 2022 upto
17* January, 2027.

Corporote Office: 29th Floos, World Trade Center, Rrigade Sateway Compus
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give
effect to this resclution in this regard.”

4. Re-appointment of Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar as an Independent Director of the
Company for the second term of five years

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification,
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (the ‘Act’)
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof and based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the
Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
re-appointment of Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar (DIN: 02179294) as an Independent Director,
not liable to retire by rotation, for the second term of five years from 18™ January, 2022
upto 17" January, 2027.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give
effect to this resolution in this regard.”

Place: Bangalore By order of the Board
Date: 4™ May, 2022 For Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

: W
?‘M‘W* L
Registered Office: cﬂﬁ__’fﬁﬁ BV
5/142, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, OMR Road, pany Secretary

Perungudi, Palavakkam,
Chennai - 600 096
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MNOTES:

a) Explanatory statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed hereto.

b) Pursuant to the General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated B™ April, 2020, 17/ 2020 dated 13™
April, 2020, 20/2020 dated 5™ May, 2020, 02/2021 dated 13™ January, 2021, 20/2021 dated
8™ December, 2021, 21/2021 dated 14™ December, 2021, and 2/2022 dated 5™ May, 2022
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, companies are allowed to hold Annual General
Meeting (AGM’) through VC/ OAVM, without the physical presence of members at a comman
venue.

Considering the health and safety of all stakeholders including the shareholders, the AGM of
the Company is being conducted through VC in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and applicable circulars issued in this regard.

c) Members attending the AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

d) A Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/
her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

However, as this AGM is being held through VC, physical attendance of Members is being
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not
be available for the AGM. Hence the proxy form and attendance slip are not being annexed to
this Notice and the resultant requirement for submission of proxy forms does not arise.

e) Since AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.



(L

BRIGADE

A A A TO CTION 102 1 Bullding Positive Expertences

TH A A 201

Item 3: Re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar as an Independent Director of the
Company for the second term of five years

The Members of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 19™ September, 2017 had
appointed Mr. Mohan Parvatikar (DIN: 00235941) as an Independent Directors of the Company
for a period of five consecutive years commencing from 18™ January, 2017. The said term of five
years ended on 17" January, 2022.

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director shall hold office
for a term upto five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and shall be eligible for re-
appointment for another five years on passing a Special Resolution by the Company.

Based on the performance evaluation, Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meeting
held on 16™ December, 2021 recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar for the
second term of five years with effect from 18™ January, 2022,

The Company has received notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar for the office of
Director of the Company,

The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Mchan Parvatikar that he meets the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Profile of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar

Mr. Mohan Parvatikar, 66 years old, holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree in electrical from IIT,
New Delhi and has done his Masters in Business Administration from the Indian Institute of
Management (IIM), Bangalore. He has extensive and versatile experience for over thirty five
years in the field of Banking, Information Technology and Stock Broking. His other interests
include application of quantitative techniques, simulation and modeling of financial systems.

Mr. Mohan Parvatikar is not disqualified for re-appointment as Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Act and has given consent to act as Director(s) of the Company.

Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item 3 of the notice as a Special
Resolution,

Except Mr, Mohan Parvatikar, none of the Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives are interested, financially or otherwise, except to the extent of their shareholding, if
any, in the Company.
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Company for the second term of five years

The Members of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 19™ September, 2017 had
appointed Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar (DIN: 02179294) as Independent Directors of the Company
for a period of five consecutive years commencing from 18™ January, 2017. The said term of five
years ended on 17™ January, 2022,

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director shall hold office
for a term upto five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and shall be eligible for re-
appointment for another five years on passing a Special Resolution by the Company.

Based on the performance evaluation, Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meeting
held on 16™ December, 2021 recommended the re-appointment of Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar for
the second term of five years with effect from 18™ January, 2022,

The Company has received notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, from a member proposing the candidature of Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar for the office
of Director of the Company.

The Company has also received a declaration from Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar that she meets the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Profile of Ms, Meera Krishna Kumar

Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar, 67 years old, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemistry Honours
and has done her Masters in Business Administration from Mysore University. She has more than
three decades of experience in the field of Banking and Real Estate. She is also an entrepreneur
for the last 20 years.

Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar is not disqualified for re-appointment as Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has given consent to act as Director(s) of the Company.

Board recommends passing of the resolution as set out in Item 4 of the notice as a Special
Resolution,

Except Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar, none of the Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
their relatives are interested, financially or otherwise, to the extent of their shareholding, if any,
in the Company.

Place: Bangalore By order of the Board
Date: 4™ May, 2022 For Perungudi Real Estates Private Lijmi“d

] A ?.'IJ
Registered Office: shmi BV
5/142, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, OMR Road, Perungudi, pany Secretary
Palavakkam,

Chennai - 600 096
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We have pleasure] in presenting the Seventh Annual Report on business and operations of the

Company togethe
31" March, 2022,

' with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Amount in Rs. Lokhs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Total Income 10,860 137
Total Expenses 26,025 1956
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (15,165) (1,819)
Provision for: Curfrent Tax 15 -
Net Profit/ (Losk) after Tax (15,180) (1,819)
Other Compr‘ah:isiv: Income - -
Total Compreheriive Income (15,180) (1,819)

FINANCIAL & ORERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

Your Company husl:

Chennai” of over 2

Your Company is

Residences", which

Tower of Brigade
tower, after Ast

illion square foot,

eveloped an iconic IT/ITES SEZ project known os "World Trade Center,

also in the process of completing a residential project called *Brigade
is ad jacent to the IT SEZ development. The Company has launched the Zenith
idence at World Trade Center, Chennai in NMovember 2021. This is the second

which was launched in 2019. The sales velocity is very good in the project.

During the year urider review, Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 15,180 Lakhs for the financial

year ended 317 M
March, 2021,

AMENDMENT TO| SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT:

During the year
Agreement dated

Enterprises Limitedl and the Company effective 215 December, 2021,

Amendments main

(TInvestor') in Shu:F
of the Company, anjongst other amendments.

ch, 2022 as compared to Rs. 1,819 Lakhs during the previous year ended 317

inder review, Shareholders of the Company amended the Shareholders’
3 March, 2016 executed between Reco Caspia Private Limited. Brigade

pertains to exercise of certain rights of Reco Caspia Private Limited
holder Meetings in case it doesn't have any nominee directors on the Board

Comporate Office: 29th Floar, World
261, Dr, Rajkumar Road, Malleswar

T: 91 B0 4137 5200 W wwew.brigdtlegroup.com

rade Canter, Brigode Gotewnoy f‘_q-rp;i-__

gm - Rojajinagar, Bengolur - 580 055, ndio




SUBSIDIARIES/

The Company is
subsidiaries/ joint

POINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES:

ubsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited. Company does not have any
ntures/ associates.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES AND DIVIDEND:

During the year, t
dividend for the Fi

DEPOSITS:
The Company has

read with the Com
amount is outsta

e Company has not transferred any amount to reserves or recommended any
ncial Year ended on 31" March, 2022,

t accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
nies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly, no
ng as on the Balance Sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL §& ISSUE OF SECURITIES:

During the year, tHere was no change in the share capital of the Company,

The paid up share [capital of the Company is Rs. 124 80,00,000 (Rupees One Twenty Four Crore

Eighty Lakhs only)

comprising of:

a) Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) divided into 1,00,000 Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10

each,

b) Rs. 62,3010,
6,23,01,000 Cl

c) Rs. 62,1680,
into 6,21,68,

(Rupees Sixty Two Crore thirty Lakh And Ten Thousand only) divided into
B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each.

(Rupees Sixty Two Crore Sixteen Lakh And Eighty Thousand only) divided
Class € Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each,

d) Rs. 23,10,000 [Rupees Twenty Three Lakhs And Ten Thousand only) divided into 23,100 A
Series Cumulatjve Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.

DEBENTURE CAP]

The Company has
Unlisted Mon-Co
50,00,00,000/- tg

[ TAL AND ISSUANCE OF NON - CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES:

tr:‘h:r raised debt capital by issuance of 50,00,000 12.00% C series Unsecured

rtible Debentures ('NCDs) of Rs. 100/- each oggregating to Rs.
the existing debenture holders of the Company ie., Brigade Enterprises

Limited and Reco Ijis Private Limited on 18™ May, 2021,

e
—
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The total Debent
aforementioned allbtments are as follows:
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e Structure of the Company as on 31" March, 2022 after considering tH8RIGADE
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a) 23764800 18% A Series Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD's) of Rs. 100 each/-
(Rupees Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs. 2,37 64 80,000/~ (Rupees Two Hundred Thirty

b)

€}

d)

e)

f)

a)

h)

i)

k)

Seven Crores 3i

2,37 55,200 11‘1.

Only) each agg
Five Lakhs and

5,00,000 12%
Hundred Only
Enterprises Li

xty Four Lakhs and Eighty Thousand Only) to Brigade Enterprises Limited.

A Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs.100/- (Rupees Hundred

egating to Rs, 2,37,55,20,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Thirty Seven Crores Fifty
Twenty Thousand Only) to Reco Caspia Private Limited.

All Series Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD's) of Rs.100/- (Rupees
each aggregating to Rs.5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Only) to Brigade

ited.

5,00,000 12% 11 Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs.100/- (Rupees Hundred

Only) each agg
Limited.

15,00,000 12%

egating to Rs.5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Only) to Reco Caspia Private

Al12 Series Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD's) of Rs.100/- (Rupees

Hundred Only) pach aggregating to Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) to Brigade
rr ng

Enterprises Li

Only) each

ited,

egating to Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) to Reco Caspia

15,00,000 izﬁFIE Series Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD's) of Rs.100/- (Rupees Hundred

Private Limit

30,00,000 12%
(Rupees Hund
to Brigade Ent

30,0000012%
(Rupees Hundr
to Reco Iris Pr

15,00,000 12%
(Rupees Hundr
to Brigade Ent

15,00,000 12%
{(Rupees Hundr
to Reco Iris Pr

A Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs.100/-

Only) each aggregating to Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Only)
prises Limited,

Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs.100/-
d Only) each aggregating to Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Only)
te Limited.

Series Unsecured Unlisted Mon-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs.100/-
d Only) each aggregating to Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)
prises Limited,

Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of Rs,100/-

d Only) each aggregating to Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)
te Limited.

Brigade Enterprises Limited.
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I) 50,00,000 1a;=1, B(I) Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) SRIGADE

Crores Only)

Reco Iris Private Limited,

m) 35,00,000 12% B(II) Series Unsecured Unlisted Mon-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of
Rs.100/- {Ru;.nu Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs.35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
B

Crores Only)

Rs.100/- (Ru

rigade Enterprises Limited.

s Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs.35,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen

n) 35,00,000 129}3{11] Series Unsecured Unlisted MNon-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) of

Crores Only) t

o) 25,00,000 12,0
100/- (Rupees
Crores Only) t¢

p) 25,00,000 12,
100/- (Rupees
Crores Only)

BOARD OF DIRE
During the year

a) Mr, Amit Math
January, 2022,

b) The Board of
00235941) and
liable to retire
2022, sub ject

Reco Iris Private Limited.

D% C Series Unsecured Unlisted MNon-Convertible Debentures ('NCDs') of Rs,
Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five

Brigade Enterprises Limited.
% C Series Unsecured Unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures ('NCDs") of Rs.
Hundred Only) each aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five
Reco Iris Private Limited.
ORS:

er review:

r (DIN: 01943856) resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f 14™

Directors approved the re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Parvatikar (DIN:

- Meera Krishna Kumar (DIN: 02179294) as an Independent Director(s) not

y rotation for the second term of five years with effect from 18" January,
approval from the Members of the Company.

The Motice cpnvening the Annual General Meeting includes the preposal for their

reappointment,

Your Directors’

recommend their re-appointment to the Board.

Directors of whic

two are Independent Directors. The composition is as under and is in due

As at 317 March, E)]EE, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of three Non-Executive

compliance with thq Companies Act, 2013:

& MName pf the Director DIN Designation

1 | Mr. Mchan Pprvatikar 00235941 Independent Director
2 | Ms. Meera Krishna Kumar 02179294 Independent Director
3 | Mr. Arindam{Mukher jee 08776424 Non-Executive Director
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of SectioBRIGADE
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Arindam Mukher Jee (DIN: 08776424), Director ¢fitheg Positive Experiences

Company will retird by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for reappofntment.

Your Directors' redommend his re-appointment to the Board.

None of the Direcfors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 6 times on the following
dates:

Dates dn which I Total Strength No. of
Board Mu'ritiwm held of the Board Directors Present
| 4™ May, 2021 4

18™ May, 2021
26™ July, 2021
26™ October, 202}
16™ December, 20p1
| 25™ January, 2023

HENESSN

LEVRE - - - Y
W (s | b b

ATTENDANCE OF [DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS/ GENERAL MEETINGS:

The Board of Dir‘m:l:r-s of the Company have attended the Board Meetings/ General Meetings as

per the following details:
Name of the Diregtor Board meetings | Attendance in the Attendance in the
attended in the  Annual General Extra Ordinary
financial year Meeting held on General Meeting
2021-22 13™ August, held on 7™ May,
2021 2021
Mr. Arindam Mukhgrjee 5] Yes Neo
Mr. Amit Mathur® 5 Mo No
Mr. Mohan Parvatilar -] Yes MNo

Ms. Meera Krishnulumnr 6 Yes Mo —|
* Mr. Amit Mathur designed from the Company with effect from 14™ January, 2022.
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BOARD EVALUATEION:

Annual evaluation
the Company for
Act, 2013,

In the Independen
a whole and the

the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual directors of

Iz Financial Year 2021-22 has been made as per the provisions of Companies

Director's Meeting held on 25™ January, 2022, performance of the Board as
rformance of non-independent directors was carried out. Performance

evaluation of the lindependent directors has been done by the entire board excluding the

independent direc

r being evaluated.

The criteria for eIquﬁon of performance of Directors and Board/ its Committees is based on

the certain pa

ers like attendance, interpersonal relation with other directors etc.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year, ALd'rr Committee met 4 times, The dates on which the said meetings were held

was 4™ May, 2021,

The composition o

6™ July, 2021, 26™ October, 2021 and 25" January, 2022,

[ the Audit Committee as at 31 March, 2022 and the details of meeting

attended by its Mefnbers are given below:

Name of the Designation No. of Committee Meetings during the year
Committee Mtnhu-s . 2021-22
Held Attended
Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Chairman 4
Ms. Meera Krishndkumar Member 4 4
Mr. Arindam Mukb[cr,iu Member 4

The Company Secrdtary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

NOMINATION &

During the year, Ng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

mination & Remuneration Committee met 3 times, The dates on which the said

meetings were heldlwas 4™ May, 2021, 16™ December, 2021 and 25™ January, 2022.

The compesition o
details of meeting

the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as at 31 March, 2022 and the
tended by its Members are given below:

Name of [the Designation | No. of Committee Meetings during the |
Committee Member year 2021-22
Held Attended
_M'_s. Meera Krishnc!:mmr Chairman | 3
Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Member ' 3 3
Mr. Arindam Mukher jee Member 3
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The Company Secrgtary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent
they continue to
Companies Act, 20

POLICY ON DIRE

The Company has
appointment and
Directors of the C
with the provisio

Considering that t
relation to the s

Iirm:‘rr.nr‘s of the Company have submitted requisite declarations confirming that

et the criteria of independence as preseribed under Section 149(E) of the
3.

[ TORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

odopted the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment/ re-
ment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The
pany are appointed by the members at annual general meetings in accordance

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

Company does not have any Executive Directors, no remuneration is paid in

Further, independ.
attending each Bo

t directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees of Rs. 20,000/- for
Meeting and Rs. 10,000/~ for attending each Committee Meeting. Apart

from the sitting fees, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its Independent Directors

during the year u

r review.

As there is only ong employee on the rolls of the Company, the remuneration paid/ payable shall

be based on the re

emmendation of Nemination and Remuneration Committee.

DIRECTORS' RESHONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Diredtors hereby confirm that:

a) in the prepara
the applicable

to material de

fion of the annual financial statements for the year ended 317" March, 2022,
counting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
rtures:

b) the Directors

ad selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and|estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of

the Company f

the Directors

accounting red

safeguarding t
irregularities;

d)

r that period;

had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
prds in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
pe assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

the annual finapcial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
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e) there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable lawsPwere Postive Experiences

in place and we

re adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year ur:I: review, Ms. Rashmi BV is appointed as Company Secretary & Chief Financial

Officer of the Co

Company Secreta

ny with effect from May 4, 2021

& Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Thriumanan. R S, Manager are the Key

In accordance wi':ith: provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Rashmi BV,

Managerial Person
PARTICULARS OF

There are no employ

| of the Company.
EMPLOYEES:

ees in the Company who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits

prescribed in SchEn 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of

Companies (Appoint

STATUTORY AUD]

re-appointed M/,

ent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 during the year.

I TORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT:

tliboi & Associates, LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of

The Members of fh%(.'empuny in the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on 13™ August, 2021 have

four years ie., fro
Tenth Annual Gener

the conclusion of the Sixth Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
nl Meeting.

There are no qualifigations or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors’ Report for the financial

statements for the
of Directors.

year ended 31" March, 2022 which require any explanation from the Board

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

appointed Ms, Aart
Secretarial Audit f

Pursuant to pmvisic:Ex

of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company have
i & Krishna, Practising Company Secretary (CP Mo, 5645) to conduct the
the financial year 2021-22,

There are no qualifi¢ations or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report which require any

explanation from th
Secretarial Audit is

PARTICULARS OF

The Company has n

t Board of Directors.
oppended as Annexure-1 to this Report,
LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

pt made any loans, investments or guarantees under Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2021-22
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BRIGADE
PARTICULARS Off CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: Building Positive Experiences
The related party fransactions undertaken during the financial year 2021-22 as detailed in notes
to accounts of the financial Statements. The related party transactions are carried at arm's
length basis and in the normal course of business.
ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the Annual Return of the
Company for the iind 31" March, 2022 is uploaded on the holding company's website under the

following link: www brigadegroup com.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There were no mn‘tTial changes and commitments for the period under review, which significantly
affects the financigl position of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDER:

During the financia year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the
regulators or courtq or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations
in the future,
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has ddequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statement$/ reporting,

During the year unt:r review, these controls were evaluated and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Diredtors and Audit Committee have been entrusted with the responsibility for
establishing policies{to monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company.

Deloitte Haskins & Jells LLP, Internal Auditors of the Company as a part of their scope cover risk
management by evalation of processes in different functions/ departments of the Company and
the risks associated therewith are presented to the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis,

The Audit C"-“"'““”"I'. and the Board review the business risks and mitigation measures on a
confinuous basis indgpendently as well as based on the reports of the Internal Auditors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:




The provisions rel
31 March, 2022,

CONSERVATION

ating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company as oRRIGADE

Bullding Positive Experiences

OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND QUTGO:

Conservation of Erergy:

The Company h
techniques which
of energy efficient

as +mim:i scope for energy conservati

on. Emphasis is being laid on employing
ult in conservation of energy. At work place, emphasis is more on installation
lights and using natural light to a maximum extent,

Technology Absorption: Nil

Foreign Exchange §arnings and Outgo:

goods.
HUMAN RESOURC]
There is 1 employee

DISCLOSURE UN
(PREVENTION, PR

Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows: Rs 11

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows: Nil

3.76 Lakhs towards purchase of

ES:
{on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2022.

b

ER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
HIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

As a part of the Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment, the
Enterprises Limited has framed a policy for the Brigade

Committee” for pre
place in accordance
and Redressal) Act,

During the year und

Holding Company i.e. Brigade
Group and constituted a *Internal
ntion and redressal of complaints on sexual harassment of women at work
ith the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition,
2013 and relevant rules thereunder.

dr review, no instances were reported.

WHISTLE BLOWER| POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

As a part of Whist
framed a policy for
Directors and emplo
or violation of the ¢

of the Audit Cammit

This mechanism alsg

mechanism,

I Blower Policy, the Holding Company i.e., Brigade Enterprises Limited has
the Brigade Group as part of vigil mechanism for observing the conduct of

and report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud
I::unfs Code of conduct to the Ethics Committee members or the Chairman

ee of Holding Company,

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization who avail the

10
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COVID-19: BRIGADE

The outbreak of Qovid-19 pandemic globally and in India has caused significant disturbance and
slowdown of econofnic activities. Our operations got impacted during the lock down period and the
restrictions imposgd on travel etc.

The Company has gpnsidered the possible effects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic on
the carrying valuef of assets including investment property and inventories. In developing the
assumptions relatipg to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of
this pandemic, the] Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used
internal and exterpal sources of information to assess the expected future performance of the
Company. The Com has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on
the current estimptes, the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as
reflected in the bdlance sheet as at 31 March, 2022, are fully recoverable.

OTHER DISCLOSYRES:

a) Company has cqmplied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Canpany Secretaries of India for the financial year ended 317" March, 2022,

b) Pursuant to Segtion 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Company is not required to maintain
any cost records.

¢) No frauds w:ﬂI reported by the Auditors as specified under Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 for the financial year ended 31*' March, 2022.

d) There are no| Corporate Insolvency proceedings initiated against the company under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

e) There were no fignificant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the gping concern status and Company's operations in future.

f) There are no [naterial changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which|have occurred between the end of the financial vear till the date of this
report,

g) There is no chahge in the nature of the business of the Company.
h) There are no differential voting rights shares issued by the Company.

i) There were no §weat equity shares issued by the Company.

11
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: BRIGADE
Bullding Positive Experiences
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and sincere thanks to all the

stakeholders for the continued support and patronage. We look forward to your support and co-

operation as the Corpany is entering the next league of growth,

By Order of the Board
For Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

i\ }ﬂkﬂhgm P"“M'L
—AFind Mukher Mohan Parvatikar
irector 7 Director
DIN| 08776424 DIN: 00235941

Place : Bangalore
Date : 4™ May, 20p2
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion

thereon.

Based on my verification of the Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year

ended on 31* March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; *
PREPL/2021-2022



(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- *

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; ¢

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; ¢

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; *

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; *

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; *

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; *

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and*

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998*

(vi) Other Laws as are applicable to Real Estate Development Company:-
1. Indian Contracts Act, 1872, Transfer of Property Act, 1882, Registration Act, 1908, Specific
Relief Act, 1963
2. State Laws such as Stamp Act, Rent Control Act, Municipal Laws, Rules and Procedures
3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,1974
4. Energy Conservation Act, 2001 and other related State laws such as The Tamil Nadu Lifts,
Act, 1997.
PREPL/2021-2022



I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; *

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, mentioned above.

My opinion is based on audit evidence, explanations and information given to me during the audit
and the Management Representation Letter is support that there were no specific non-compliances

in respect of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

I Further Report That

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.A

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the Meeting and for

meaningful participation at the Meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded

as part of the Minutes.
I Further Report That there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

PREPL/2021-2022



1 Further Report That during the Audit period the Company has:

- Allotted of 50,00,000 12% C Series Unsecured Unlisted Non- Convertible Debentures of
Rs. 100/- each to Brigade Enterprises Limited and Reco Iris Pte. Ltd on 18" May, 2021

- Appointed Company Secretary with effect from 4™ May, 2021

- Executed a First Amendment Agreement to the Shareholders Agreement on 21%
December, 2021 and corresponding alterations are being made to the Articles of

Association of the Company.

f""i\_'_..

Place : Bengaluru Signature:
Date : 4™ May, 2022 Name of Company Secretary in practice: Aarthi G Krishna
UDIN: F005706D000277043 FCS No.: 5706

CP No.: 5645

¢ These Laws/Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Standards are not applicable as the Company is an Unlisted Subsidiary of a
Listed Company.

A The Company does not have any executive directors.
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ANNEXURE
To
The Members
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. T have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 1 believe that the processes
and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

4. Whereever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

/"'11\,‘__’_.,

Place : Bengaluru Signature:

Date : 4™ May, 2022 Name of Company Secretary in practice: Aarthi G Krishna
FCS No.: 5706
C P No.: 5645
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion

thereon.

Based on my verification of the Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year

ended on 31* March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; *
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- *

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; ¢

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; ¢

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; *

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; *

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; *

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; *

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and*

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998*

(vi) Other Laws as are applicable to Real Estate Development Company:-
1. Indian Contracts Act, 1872, Transfer of Property Act, 1882, Registration Act, 1908, Specific
Relief Act, 1963
2. State Laws such as Stamp Act, Rent Control Act, Municipal Laws, Rules and Procedures
3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,1974
4. Energy Conservation Act, 2001 and other related State laws such as The Tamil Nadu Lifts,
Act, 1997.
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I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; *

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, mentioned above.

My opinion is based on audit evidence, explanations and information given to me during the audit
and the Management Representation Letter is support that there were no specific non-compliances

in respect of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

I Further Report That

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.A

Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the Meeting and for

meaningful participation at the Meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded

as part of the Minutes.
I Further Report That there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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1 Further Report That during the Audit period the Company has:

- Allotted of 50,00,000 12% C Series Unsecured Unlisted Non- Convertible Debentures of
Rs. 100/- each to Brigade Enterprises Limited and Reco Iris Pte. Ltd on 18" May, 2021

- Appointed Company Secretary with effect from 4™ May, 2021

- Executed a First Amendment Agreement to the Shareholders Agreement on 21%
December, 2021 and corresponding alterations are being made to the Articles of

Association of the Company.

f""i\_'_..

Place : Bengaluru Signature:
Date : 4™ May, 2022 Name of Company Secretary in practice: Aarthi G Krishna
UDIN: F005706D000277043 FCS No.: 5706

CP No.: 5645

¢ These Laws/Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Standards are not applicable as the Company is an Unlisted Subsidiary of a
Listed Company.

A The Company does not have any executive directors.
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ANNEXURE
To
The Members
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. T have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 1 believe that the processes
and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

4. Whereever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

/"'11\,‘__’_.,

Place : Bengaluru Signature:

Date : 4™ May, 2022 Name of Company Secretary in practice: Aarthi G Krishna
FCS No.: 5706
C P No.: 5645
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Chartered Acoountants
Begaluiu - 560 001, India
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited ("“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2022, its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards an Auditing (5As), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report, We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.3 of the financial statements, which describes the management's evaluation of Covid-
19 impact on the future business operations and future cash flows of the Company. In view of the uncertain
economic conditions, the management’s evaluation of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent
upun conditions as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is respensible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors” report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's re port
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and. in
doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o report
that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
ofaccounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but 1o do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fracd or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
vesulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order ta design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
un the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report, However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company 0 cease 10 continue as a4 going concern,
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Chartered Accotintants

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that iy
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2, Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledze
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

() The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e} The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company;

{(f} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Acr;

(2) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this
report,

(k) The Company has not paid any managetial semuneration to s direclors during the year and hence
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the vear
ended March 31, 2022;

(1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statemnents — Refer Note 28(c) to the financial statements;
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V.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer
Note 17 to the financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 36 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities {* Intermed:aries™), with the understandin 2,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 36 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fundin i Party
{("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm Regitration Number: 101049/ E300004

per Sudhic
Pariner

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 22213 137ADUWD3749

N
\

miar Jain

Place: Bengaluru
Prate: May 04, 2022
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Annexure *1' referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited (*the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i} a)A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(adB)
(b)

(e}

(d)

()

(i) (a)

{b)

{iii} {a)

ib)

{c)

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification,

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in note 3.2 to the financial statements
incleded in investment property and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of the Company.
Immaovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for term
loans and guarantees, are held in the name of the Company based on confirmations received by us
from lenders,

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during the vear
enided March 31, 2022

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
as diselosed in the note 3.2 to the financial statements.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion, the coverage and the procedure of such werification by the management is
appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed
on such physical verification,

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits i excess of Rs. live crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the vear on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement W report on clause 3(iij(b} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company,

During the vear, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other paries.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii}a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(h) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties. Aceordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)}c) of
the Crrder is not applicable to the Company.
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(dy

(e}

(f)

{iv)

(v

(Vi)

{vii) (a}

(k)

{wiii)

(1x}) (a)

(b}

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans o companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iii)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iii)e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iii)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3{iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Govemnment has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section [48( 1) of the Act for the construction activities undertaken
by the Company since the turnover in the preceding year does not exceed the specified limit.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and-
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there have been slight delays in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect ofthese
statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

The provisions relating to provident fund and employee’s state insurance are not applicable to the
Company.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been
depasited on account of any dispute.

I'he provisions relating to pravident fund and employee’s state insurance are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the vear as
disclosed in note 36 of the financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order 15 not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or interest thereon due to
any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
sovernment or any sovernment authority.
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(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
{x} (a)
i)
{xi) fa)
(b}
ic)
{x1)
{xiii}
{xiv}(a)
{b}
{xv)
{xvi) (a)
(b}

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

The Company did not raise any funds on short term basis during the year, Hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Aceordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement
te report on Clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company,

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares (fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Neo fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year,

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audil have been considered by us,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934} are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable 1o the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvij(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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fc)

(d)

{xvii)

{xviit)

(xix)

{xx) (a)

(xx)(b)

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Aceordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)}(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3{xvi){d} of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 5,135 lakhs in the current year and
amounting to Rs.1,793 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a peried of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility i1s not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to repont on clause
3{xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3{xx )b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accopntants

ICAI Firm Repfotration Mumber: 101049W/E300004
[ &

per Sudhi mar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 222131 5TATUWE3749

1

Place: Bengaluru
Dare: May 04, 2022
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Annexure ‘27 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited {“the Company™)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of Perungudi Real Estates
Private Limited {“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance note™). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143 10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference  these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk thal a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemnal financial
control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the asseis of the company: (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely delectigrfg[_ _
=R
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
referenice to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements wers
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the intemmal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India,

For S5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regjstration Mumber: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 213157

UDIN: 22213 157AUUWD374%

Place: Bengalury
Date: May 04, 2022



Perungudi Peal Estates Private Limited
Balance shezt as at March 31, 20232
(ANl amounis in Tedian Repees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Mon-current assels
Property, plant and eguipment
Capital work in progress
[mvestment property
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Other non-current financial assels
Other non-current asscls
Mszets for current tax (nel)
Sub fotal

Current assels
Inventories
Financial asscis
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash equivalents
Other curment financial assets
Othér current assets
Sub total

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share eapital

Oither equity
Total equity

LIABILITIES
Mon-corrent linbilitics
Financial liabilitics

Bomowings

Orther non-current financial labilitics
Deferred tax liabilities {net)
Oither non-current Habilines
Sub total
Current liabilitics
Financial habilities

Borrowings

Tride payables

= Total outstanding dues of micro enterprizes ang small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Dither eurrent Anancial Babilitics
{her current liabilitics
Short-term Provisions
Linbilitaes for currend Lax {nel)
Sub tatal

Total equity and lighilities

Summary of significam accodaniing policics

The accompanying noles are an imegeal par: of the financial statements:
As por our repert of even dale

For 8.1, Batlibol & Aszociares LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAL Finn registrntion number: | 01049/ E 40004

per Smlhi
Partner
Membenhip o 213157

Place; Bengalur
Diater day D4, 2022

MNotes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| I 1
3.3 2,656 1,533
3.2 149177 150,606

4 S0 1.000
5 0,637 2270
[ 43 593
733 248
163,167 156,253
1 42,009 34,031
] 3,957 Q09
a1 3,825 3,846
g2 5,343 13
E 1,248 5
fi 1442 458
57824 39262
230,991 LI5S
0 12,457 12,457
il 117, 746) (2,566}
{5.289) 9,891
2 142,674 1.15.606
13 2.560 2827
I4 4 4
I 281 E
145,519 118437
12 2959 17237
15
1 z
1791 1,682
13 484461 39234
1o 20,5892 8,154
17 930 e
a7 =
BOLTG1 67,187
2.20.991 155,535
2.1

For and on behalf of the bowrd of divectors of .
Perungndi Real Eshﬁes Privage Limited L ,& .I"\
Molan Parvatilkar Arindam Mueklerjee

Director Drircctor

1

1IN (23594 | D 08776424
) W
oY .
RW Thirvosiian £
Company Secretany and Manager

Chiel Financial OtTieer
Membership no,: AJBTIU
Place: Bengalur

Bete: May 04, 2022




Perungudi Real Estaics Private Limited
Statement of profit and foss for the yvear ended March 31, 2022

(AN amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

oles March 31 March 31, 2021
Incomie
Feevenue from operations 18 10,528 -
Other income 1% 333 137
Total income fi} 10860 137
Expenses
Sub-contractor cosl 5720 2,139
Cost of project materialz consumed 20 200 417
{Increase) decrease in inventories of work-in-progress 2 {1.976) {4,050)
Employee benefils cxpense 22 13 2
Finance costs 24 14,477 - 2019
Depreciation and amoriization expense i 10045 6
Other expenses 25 3546 1299
Total expenses {ii) 26,025 1,956
(L.oss) before tax (i) = (1) - (id) {15,165} {1819
Tax expense 14
Current 18x 15 -
Dheferred tax a n
Total tax expense {iv} 15 -
{Loss) for the year {v) = {iii} - (iv) (15,180) {1.819)
Other comprehensive income ("OCT') {vi) ~
Total comprehensive (loss) for the vear .
|eomprising {Loss) and OCI for the year)| =it ive (15,180) (1.819)
Earning/ Loss) per share 27
fnominal value af share B3, 10 (March 31, 2021: Rs, 109
Baszic (Rs.)
Class A equity shares = z
Class B equity shares (1243 (1.449)
Class C equity shares {11.546) {1.43)
Diluted (Rs.)
Class A cquity shares & .
Class B cquity shares (12.43) {1.49)
Class C equily shares [11.96) (143
Summary of significant acenunting poficies 21
The accompanying nodes 2re an intcgral pan of the fmancial statements
As perour report of gven date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLF For and on behalf of e bowed of diredors of
Chartered Accountants Perungudi Heal Estates Private Limived

ICAL Firm rf;usiraliun number: TOIO49WEI00004 .
r "II".‘I":‘“ Y or— ¥ D&J w!:_szx‘\\
2 : "

| ) P
N Sahian Parvadikar © Arvindam Mukbgrjee
Director DHrector
per Sud% wmar Jain [IM; DO23594 ] LM DRT 76424
Fariner M
Membeship no: 213157 4
Tigrﬁ/mu nan B
hianager

Chwel Financial Officer
Membeershug no,; AFST20

Phace: Bengahury
Date: May 04, 2022

Place: Bengalur
Date; May 0d, 2022




Perungudi Rezl Estates Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, excepl as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (refer note 11)

Class A Equity shares Class B Equity shares Class C Equity shares Tetal
. . MNao. of Rs. Ma. af Rs. Mo, of Hs. Na.of R
Issued, subscribed and fall - ;
sty ;t et gt shares  inlakhs  shares in lakhs shares  inlakhs  shares  in lakhs
Lin takhs] {in lakhs Lin lakhs) {im lakhs)

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each:

Az at April 01, 2020 1 10 623 6,230 [k 6,217 1,246 12,457

Changes during the year - - - - . . - -

As at March 31, 2021 I in 623 6,230 622 6,217 L2446 12,457

Changes during the year - 2 = - - : = -

As ni March 31, 2022 1 10 623 6,230 622 6,217 1,246 12457
B. Other equity (refer nate 11)

Equity
componeat of Reserves and surplus
Compound Debenture  Genceral Retaimed — Total
Financial Redempiion  Reserve  earnings
Instrumenis Reserve

As at April 01, 2020 i 15 4 (776} (747}
Profit{ Loss) for the year - - (LEIY  (LEI9)
As at March 31, 2021 10 15 4 (2,595)  (2,566)
{Loss) for the year - - = [13.180)  (15.180)
As at March 31, 2022 il 15 4 (1T, 775)  (17,746)
Summary of significant accounting polic s 21

The accompanying notes-are gn mteeral part of the financial statemenis,

Az per our repart of even date

For 5.1, Batlibod & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAL Firm segstration numbers |0 1049V E300004

pier Sodh
Partner
Membership no.: 213157

T Jain

Place: Bengaluru

el My 04, 2022

Fer and on behalf of the board of dirgetors of

Muahan Parvatikar

Dhrector
[N 00235941

E:-"'I
A
RS

Company Sceoretany and
Chief Financial Officer
Plembership noc AZET29

Place: Bengaluru
Diae: ay 04, 2022

= Arindam Mukhsrice

Director
DIN: (8776424

Thiramanan R
Manager




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Statement of Cagh Flows for the year saded March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in Indisn Rupees Lakhs, axeept a otherwise stated)

Cash flows Trom operiting activities
{Loss) before 1ax
Adjistments to reconcile profil belore tax o net cash Rows:
Denreciiion and amortization expense
Finance Casts
Provision for controct |oss
Intgrest income
Orperating profit before working capiful changes
Waorking capital adjustments:
Increase in trade payables
Increase i other Dabilitics
Increase { { Decrease) inother financiat Hakilities
{Increase) in inventories
{Increase) in trade reccivables
{Increase) in other Nnancial assets
(Increase)in other assets
Cazh generated from operations
Direct taxes paid, net
MNet cash fows from operating activities (A}

Cash Nows from investing activities

Purchase of investment property

(including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Investment in bank deposins

Redemption of bank deposits

Interest received

Met cash Mows used in investing activities (13}

Cazsh Mlows from fOnancing activities

Proceeds from term bosn from banks
Reseyment of term loan from banks

Proceeds from Fssue of debentures

Interest pand

Met cash Mows from faancing sctivities (C)

MNet mereased{decreaze) in cash and cash squivalents (A + 8+ C)
Crsh and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

= O CRTTen BCCnLnS

- in deposit accounts with eriginal maturidy of Tess than 3 months
Total cash and cash equivalents as reported i Ralance Sheet

Changes in habilitics anising from Nnancing activities

Summary of zignilicant accounting policies

The sccompanying noles arean integral parl of the lnancial safements.

As por our report of cven date

For 8.1, Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accontants

ECAL Fipm reguatmioon numvbee 01049 2 E300004

Place: Bengalusu
Drate; May 04, 2022

March i. 2021
(15,165) (LEIT
10,045 26
14477 2119
| 50} 632
{3211 (123)
o185 835
114 1,427
18619 a.B4]
{235) 939
{7,978) {4.036)
(2,905) (730
{4,079} .
{437} {4651
12,286 28N
(493 (19}
11,793 1,752
[5.153) (21,483}
{14,008} {1,986)
4,336 454
132 o6
{1%,693) {22,889)
26,324 49,442
(18,734 (39,695}
5000 17,000
(5911 (5730}
6,879 21,017
(21} 020
3840 2925
3815 3,846
2,493 1,062
1,332 ped
g 1,825 5045
S T

LA

For and on behall of he board of direclors of
Perungudi Renl Extiates rlvme Liraited

Lf"' vy "'~

bodlalasm i

Mohan P‘nrvnllb:lr Arindam M1|li!'|rr1
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E Corporate information

Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited ("PREPL" or "the Company") (bearing CIN number UT0200TMN2015PTCI02278) was incorperated on
September 21, 2015. The Company s engaged in the business of real estate development and [casing.

On March 03, 2016, the Company had exceuted Sccurnitics Subscription Agreemient (“55A") and Share Holders Agreement ("SHA™Y (callectively
referred to as "Invesiment Agreemens") with Reco Caspia Pre Limited ("RCPL") and Brigade Enterprises Limited ("BEL") (collectively referred 1o
as “Investors") pursuant o which the Investors have invested in the Company for execution of real estate prajects,

The financial statements were authorized for izsue i accordance with a resolution of the Board of direciors of the Company on May 04, 2022,
2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are preparcd in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and presentation reguirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11T 10 the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
Schedule [11), as applicable to the financial statements.

On March 24, 2021, the Minisiry of Corporate Affaics (MCA) throwgh 4 notification, amended Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing from April 01, 2021, The preparation of financial statements is after taking into
congideration the effect of the amended Schedule [11. The Company has also reclassificd the previows wvear figures in accordance with the
requirements applicable i the current year,

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, excepl for certam lnancial instrumesis which are measured a1 fair values at
the end of each reporling period, as explained in e accounting policics helow, Historical cost is gencrally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

X! Sumwnary of significant accourting policies
{a} Use of estimates

The preparation ef financial slatements i conformily witl Ind AS requires the management (o make judgments, estimales and assunptions that
affeet the reported amounts of revenuss, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of coniingent Habilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although lhese estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uneenzinty about these assumptions and
eatimates could resull o the oulcomes requiting & material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets o Habilitics, The effect of change in an
accounting estintate 15 recognized prospectively,

{b) Current versus non-gurreni classification
The Company presenis assets and labilitics in the balance sheet Based on current/ non-current lassification.

An azset is treated a3 current when it 15

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyvele

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realteed within twelve months afier the reporling period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent enless sestricted from being exchanged or used to setle a lability for at least twelve months after the reponting period
Adl other assets are classified as non-current,

A Hability s current when:

= It ig expected 10 be seitled in norm! operating cvele

= It s held primarily for the purpose of trading

- it 15 due fo be settled within twelve months afier the reporting perkod, or

- There i& no unconditional right 1o dofer the sententent of the liability for at least twelve months after the regening period
Al oiher liabilities are classified as nen-coment.

F'he operating cyele is the time betwean the aeguisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company fins
evaluated and considered i1s operating cyele s below and sccordingly has reclassified its assets and labilitics into current and non-current;
~Rezidential projects for real estate de relapment -3-5 vears
-Leasing husiness -1 year

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above; are classified as current to the extent they are expected to berealized/ nre conpraciually
repavable within 12 months from the Safarce sheet date and as non-cafrent, in other cases

Diefeerod tax pssetstighilities sre class Sed as non-curment asseisdiabitities,

el Property, plant and equipment

Propeny, plant and equipment are staied ol codt, net of accumulated depreciation and acewmulated impaireent losses, if any, The COsh E0mprises
purchase price, bomowing costs il captalization criteria arc met and diceetly anributable cost of bringing the assct 10 its working condition for the

intended use. Any trdde discounts and r¢hntes are deducted i armiving at the parchase price

Cach part of an item of property, plast and equipment with & cost that is significant in relation to the fotal cost of the item is depreciated separatehy.
This applies niainly to components “or machinery, When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the
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Company depreciates them separttely based on their speeifie useful lives, Likewise, when & major inspeetion is performed, its cost is recognized in
the carrying amount of the plant and *7uipment a3 a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maislenance cosls are
recognized in profil of loss as incurred,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value onby i7it increases the future benefits from its
previousiy assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on cxisting property, plant and cquipoent, incloding day-to-day. repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are chiarged to the stfement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
meured.

Barrowing costs: directly attribusable 1w scquisition of property, plant and equipment which 1ake substantial periad of time 1o get ready for its
intended use are aiso included to the extent they relate 1o the pericd 1101 such nszets arg ready to be put to use,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment owstanding ol each balance sheet date 15 classified as capitn] advances under
othar non-current assets.

An item of preperty, plant and equipment and any significant part inftially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no futere economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assel (calculated az the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carryving amauni of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized,

Expenditure directly relating 0 construction activity is capitalized. Indireet éxpenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the
extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related fo construction of s incidental (hereto, Other indirect expenditure (ncluding borrowing costs)
incurred during the construction pericd which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto iz charged 1o the statement of
predit and loss.

Coats of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

fdy Investment properly

[nvestment properiies are measured inaially a1 cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to inilial recogrition, investment properies are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment logs, ifany.

The eost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if ine recognition criteria gre met. When
significant parts of the inveztment property are required 1o be replaced at imervals, the Company deprecintes them separately based on their specific
wseful lives. All other repair and mainienance costs are recognized in profit or loss as inevrred.

Though the Company measures invertmen! property using cosl-based measurement, the fair valoe of investment property is disclosed in the notes,
Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited extemal imdependent valuer.

Investment properties are de-recognized when he entity ransfers control of the: same o the buyer, Further the eatily also derecoganises investment
properiics when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no fulure economic benelil is expected Trom their disposal, The dilTerence between
the net disposal proceeds and the carmving amount of the azset s recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition,

Costs of assets not ready for use af the bafance sheet date are disclosed under Capital worki- in- progress.

Transfers are made to (or from) invesiment propertics only when there 15 a2 change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied
property and invenfories do not chenge the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for
medsurement or disclosure purposes.

) Depreciaticn

Diepreciation {5 caleetated on weitten down value besis vsing the following usefol lives estimated by the management, which are equal o those
preserbed under Schedule 1 to the Coxpanies Act, 20 3:

Category of Assel Uselul lives (in
YEArs)

Buildinps ]
Plant and machinery 15
Electrrca! Insiallation and equipmes: — i
Furmniture, lxtures and [t outs 58]
Coumputer hardwars
= Compaster equipnrent 3
- Servers and nelwork equipment G
Cifice equipment 5

The residual values, usetul lives and 1nethods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipmaent and investmes: pooperty are revicwed at each financial
yearend and adjusted prospectively, iTapprapriate.

[ Imtangible Asseis

Intangible assels acquired separately zae messurcd on initial recoendtion al cosl. Following initial recognition, imangible assess are carried at cost less
accumulaied smorizaiion and scoumolited impairment fosses, i any.




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2022
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

Intangible asset comprising of license is amorized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years, which & estimated by the management to be the
wseful life of the asset,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assees are reviewed al each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the differcnce between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying
amount of the asser and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized,

3] Impatrment

A. Financial assets

The Company asscsses al cach date cf balance sheel whether a financial asset or o group of financial assets is impaired and measuses the reauired
expected credit losses through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and ( or all trade receivables
that do net constitute 2 financing wansaction, For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal 2 the 12.-month
expeted eredit losses or at an amourt equal 1o the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assers

The Company assesses m each reporting date whether there & un indication that an esset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable smount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel's or cash-gencrating unit's (CGUY net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unbess the
azsel does not generate cash inflows (ar wre Jargely indcpendent of those from other assels or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an
asset or COU exeeeds its recoverable anount, the asset is considercd impaired and is written down 10 s recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Nows are distounted 10 their present value using 2 pre-tax discount sate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price; recent market fransaetions are
taken into ateount, if available. [Fno such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is nsed.

Impairiment losses are recognized in the statement of profitand loss. Alter impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assel over ils remaining useful life,

ih} Barrowing costs
Rorrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity fneurs in conmection with the borrowing of fads,

Borrowing costs directly atiributable o the gequisition, consiruction or production pf an asset that neczssarily (akes n subsiantial period of time 1o got
ready for its intended use or sale ape capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective assef, A1 other borrowing costs are charged 1o
statement of profitand loss,

(1) Inventorizs

Direct expenditure relating to real estate getivity is mventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during construction period is
inventorised to the cxtemt the expeniiture is directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for ils inended use. Other
expenditure (including borrowing cos-s) incurred during the constriction period which is not direetly attributeble for bringing the asset o iis waorking
condition for its intended use is charged 1o the stalement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identifeztion
e the real estate achvity,

Wark-in-progress represents cost incurred i respeet of unsold area (incleding land) of the real estate development projects or cogt fncurred on
projects where the revenge 5 vet 1o b recognized.

Raw materials- Mraject mateiials are vaiued at lower of cost gad nel realizuble valus,

Cost ig determined based on FIFC Basls, Mot realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of butiness, iess cstimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necestsry to make the sale,

(1 Land

Adivanices pard by the Company 10 th selfer/ inlermediary toward outright purchase of Tand is recognized as fand advance onder loans and advances
during fiw course of obtaining clear and markerabic fitie, free from ail encumbrances and iranster of fegal nitls fo tBe Crmipany, whereapon i i
transferred o land stock under imveniodies! capital work in progress

k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from confraots with cusiomess

Reevenue from contracis with eustom: 35 is recognised when control of the gonds or services are transeered to the customer at zn amauns that reflects
the consideration to which Lhe Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measered based on the transaction
price, whicl is the consideration, scpsted for discounts and other credits, if any, as speeified in ihe contract with the costomer. The Company
presents revenine from conlracts with coskomness nel of indirect Gixes in il statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whelher theve are cther promises in the contract that are sepamite performance obligetions to wiich o portion of the
transaction price nesds lo be allecatsd Do detenmining the rnssction price, the Company considers the effects of variskle consideration, the
existence of significant Nnancing concponents, noncash consideration, and consideration payable 1w e cusiaser, i any.
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Revenue from real estaie development of residential or commercial unit is recognised at the point in time, wien the control of the asset is ransfemred
o the customer,

Revenue consists of sabe of undivided share of land and constrocted area to the customer; which have been identified by the Company as a single
performance abligation, as they are hizhly interrelated’ interdependent,

The performance obligation in relation 1o real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of eontrol of the asset to
the customer,

For contracts invalving sale of real estate unil, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the contrct in proportion of
the percentage of compietion of such real estate project and represents payments made by customers to sccure performance obligation of the
Company under the contract enforceatle by customers. Such consideration s received and ulilised for specific redl estate projects in accordance with
the requirements of the Real Estate {Regulation and Development) Act, 2016, Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with
customers do not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is ofher than for provision of finance
to/from the customer,

Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in ¢éxchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. 17 the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a conract asset is recognised for the earnad
consideration that is conditional,

Trade receivable represents the Company's right o an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time i reqrired before
payment of the consideration is due), :

Contract liability is the obligation o iransfer goods or services 1o & cusiomer for which the Company has received consideration (or sn amount of
eonsideration is due) from the custoirier. 17 8 customer pavs consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract lizbilitics are recognised as revenug when the
Company performs under the contracl.

Cost fo abfain a contrger

Thee Company recoguises as an assel the ineremental costs of obtaiming a contract with a customer if the Company expects to recover those costs, The
Company incurs costs such ag sales sommission when it caters inte a new conteaet, which are direetly related to winning the contract. The assct
recognized 8 amortised on & systemat’s basis that is consistent with the transfer 1o the customer o the goods o7 services o which fhe assel relates,

Ineome fiom leasing

Rental imcome receivable under operating leases (exchuding variable rental income) is recognized in the income sistement on a straighi-line basis
over the ferm of the lease including lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits. Renial income under operating leases having vartabls
rental income is recognieed as per the ‘ems of the contract.

Imierest income
Interest income. including income arising from other financial instruments, is recognised using the effective frrerest rate method, Interest on delayed
payment by customers are accounted when réasonable certainty of collection is established,

{1} Fareign currency franslation

Funetional aind presentaiion snrrency

lems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured vsing the currency of the primery cconemic environment in which the
Company operates {'the lonetional cerency” ) The financial stztements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and
preseniation currency,

Foreign currency transaciions and bolances

i} Initial recognition - Foveign currenc transactiong are recorded in the repenting curreney. by applying to th & foreizn currerncy 2mmount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency ard the foreign curmency at the date of the ansaction,

i} Conversion - Foreign currency moactary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at (= reportimg dats. Monnonetary ems,
which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign eurmency, arc reported using the exchange rate af the date of the transaction.
Mon-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other simitar valoation denominated in a foreign cur-ency, are translated using the exchange
ratg al the date when such viloe was g lermined.

#i} Exchange differerces - The Compeny aecounts for exchangs differences arising on trunslation! settlemes of foreign curcency monetary items as
incotne or as expense in the period in ~vhich they nrise,

frn} Retirement and other emp' svee henelits

Uhe provisions of the Employees’ Provident Fands & Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1932 and Cmployees™ Stete 1nsurence Act, 1948, Payoent of
Gratuity Act, 1972, etg. are not appliv2ale o the Company a5 the sumber of employess are less than the minitzim required employess under the said
HELS,

{n) Incone taxes

Income tax expense comprises currer: fax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or lability dering the vear. Cument and deferred (ax

arg recopnized tn the statement of pro™t and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other compaehenzive incame or dircetly in
equily, in which case; the current and ceferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive imcome of direetly in cquity, respectively.
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I Current ncome tax
Current income fax for the current und prior perinds are measured at the amount expected Lo be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
based on the txable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

i, Deferred income tax ;

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences al the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial repording purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction,

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary dilferences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax logses, to the
extent that it is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profil will be available to allow all or parl of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deforred tax relating fo ilems recognized oulside profit or loss is recognized in correlation 1o the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in
equity,

Dieferred income lax assels and liabifitics are measured ar the tax rates that sre expected to apply in the period when the asset s realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates {and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

{a) Frovisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company hias a present ohligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o senle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
If the effect of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are discounted wsing & current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specilic to the lisbility. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent lisbility is o possible obligation that arises from past cvents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or non-
aceurrence of one or more unceriain fulkre events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
hecause it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the ohligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannct be recognized because it cannot be measured refiably. The Company doss not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unbess the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is remote.

1f the company has a contract that is oncrous, the present obligation under the contract is established, the Company tecognises any impairment loss
that has eecurred on assets dedicated to the contract.

(p) Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a Hability to make cash distributions o equity holders of the Company when the disiribution is suthorized and the
distribution 5 no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as o lishility on the date of approval by the
shareliolders and interim dividends are recorded as a Habilily on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly lquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of eash that are subject 1o an
insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less frony the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents, Cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and bank balances which are unrestricled for withdrawal and usage.

(r} Eamings Per Share

Dasic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the wel profil or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Parily paid equity shares are treated as a Traction of an cquity share 1o the extent that they are
entithed 1o participate in dividends relative 10 o fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of cquity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for evenls such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares sutstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted camings per share, the wet profit or loss for the period atirbutable o equity sharcholders and the weighted
average number of shares cwistanding during the period ane adjusted for the effects of ull dilutive potential equity shares,

{s) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangentent is (or containg) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement a8 the inception of the lease. The

arrangement 15, or conlaing,  fease if fulfilment of the armngement is dependent on the use of a speeific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
aright to use the agset or assels, even iMhat right is noi explicitly specified in an arrangeément,
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Where the Company iy fessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an asset is classified as operating
teases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred i negotiating and aranging an
operating lease are added 1o the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease ferm on the same basis as renfal income,
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned,

Leases are classified as finunce leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company 1o the lessee, Amounts
duc from lessees under finance leases are recorded 45 receivables at the Company’s net investment in the feases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods soas to reflect 4 constant peredie rate of return on the net investment cutstanding in respect of the lease,

() Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,
i [nital recognition and measurement of financial assets and labilities

Financial assets and lizbilitics are recognized when the Company becomes a party o the coniractual provisions of the instrument, Financial assets
and lighilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of fnuncial assets and
financial labilities (oher than financial assets and financial liabilitics at fair value threugh profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured an initial recognition of financial assct or fAnancial liability,

i Financial assets al amoriized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective i5 to hold these
azsels in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through ather comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive mcome if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractuzl cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dales to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal &nd intérest on the principal amount outstanding.

iv, Financial assets at fair valee through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value throngh profit or loss unless itis measured at amornlized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
incomee on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of fnancial ussets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or less are immediately recognized in statement of profitand foss,

v, Dbt instruments at amortized cost

A ttebt instrument” is measured at the amaortized cost if both the following conditions are met;

) The asset is held within a bosiness model whose objective is to hold assels for collecting contractual eash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates (o cash flows that are solely paymenis of principal and interest {(SPP1) on the prineipal
amount ouistanding.

After initial measurement, such finencial assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is caloulated by taking mio account any discount or premium on acquigition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization i included in finance income it the prolit of loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit er loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables,

¥i. Financial Habilities at fair value through profitor loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss nclede financial liabilities Tetd for trading and Gnancial liabilities designated wpon initinl
regognilion as al fuic value through profit or loss. Financial liahilitics are classified as held for rading if they are ingurred for the purpose of
repurchasimg in the near teim. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered inte by the Company that are not designated ns
hedging instruments, Gains or losses on liabilities beld for trading are recognized in the profitor loss:

Vil Financial habalities al amortized cost

Financizl Habilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (*EIR") method

Interest-bearing losns and borrowings are subscquently measured at amortized cost using EIR method. For teade and other payahles maturing within
one year from the balance sheet date. (he carrying amonns approximate Tuir value due to the short maturity of these instroments.

i, Dé-recognition of Gnancisl instuments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset éxpire ot it transfars the Tinancinl

assct and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition wnder Ind AS 109, A fnancial liahility (or a part of & financial liabiliy) is derecognized when the
ohligation specificd in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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1. Reclassification of ihancial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, no reclassification is made
far financial instruments.

. Fair value of financial imstruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing at ¢ach reponting date.

Fair value hicrarchy: All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorived within the fair
veelue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpat that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

B Level |- Quoted (unadjosted ) nurket prices in active markets for identical azsets or liabilities

B Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
B Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 16 the fair value measurement is unohservabie

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whetlier transfers have occurred
between levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as o
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

{u) Segment reporting

i. ldentification of segments - The Company’s operating businesses are oreanized and managed separately according to the natere of products and
services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets, The analysis of
geographical sepmenits 15 based on the arcas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

il. Inter-segment transfers - The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at appropriate marging.

fit. Unallocated items - Unaliocated items inclide general corporate assed, linhility, income and expense items which are notallocated to any bustness
SepmEnL.

i, Segment accounting policies - The Company prepares its scgment information in confarmity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole,

22 Significant accounting judgments, cstimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company 's financial slatements requires managemeni fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied
emounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the sccompanying digclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and cstimates could resull in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or labilities affected in
fupure periods,

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgment, esfimates and assumptions which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Mnancial statements. The key judgment, estimates and assumptions conceming the futre and
other key sources of estimation uncerfainty at the reporting date, which have a significant risk of cansing a material adjusiment to the camying
ameunts of assets and Habilities within the next fnancial year, are described below. The Company based ils judgments snd assumptions and
eslimates on parameters available when the financial stalements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may chinge due to marked changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contral of the Company, Such ¢hanges are reflected in the
assumptions when they eccur. Also refer note 2.3 below.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions wséd by management are s below:

Revertue from contrects with customers
The Company applied the following judgeménts that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
CUESLOFNETS:

af Mdentiffcation of performance obligaton

Revenue consists of sale oFundivided share of land and construeted ansa to the customer, which have been identified by

the Company 4% & single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated’ imerdependent. In assessing whether performance oblipations
relating to sale of undivided shire of land and constructed area are highly interrelated interdependent, the Company considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benziit from the undivided share of land or the constrocted area on s own or Wwgether with other resources readily
available to the customer,

- whother the entity will be able to fulfil s promise under the contract 1o ransfer the undivided share of Jand withon transfer of constructed arca or
transfer the constructed arca without transfer of undivided share of land.

b Timing of satisfaction of perfarinaice abligation

Revenue from sale of real estate units is recognised whew (or ash control of such units is transferred to the costomes. The entity assesses tming of

transfer of control of such wnits io the customers as transferred over time i one ol the following criteria are met

= The customer simultaneoosly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the enting’s performance as the eptity perforing,

= The entity's perfonnance creales or enhances an assel that the customer controls as e nssel is created or enhanced,

- The emity's performance does nol creale an assel with an allemative use fo the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance eompleted fo date,

If control is not ransferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as fransterred ata point in time,
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For eomtracts where eontrel is transtorred at 2 point in fime, the Company considers the following indicators of the
transfer of control of the assel to the customer:

- When the entity oblains a present right to pavinent for the asset,

- When the entity transfers fegal title of the asset to the customer.

- When the entity imnsfers physical possession of the asset fo the customer.

- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o fhe customer,

= When the customer haz accepted the nsset,

Estimation of mel reaflizable value for imeentory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). MRV for completed inventory is assessed by reference 1w market conditions
and prices existing a1 the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for
properties in the same geographical markel serving the same real estate segment.

NRY in respect of inventory under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting dute for similar completed property, less
estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion,

Measurement of francial instrurents ol amoriized cost

Financial instrumenis are subsequently mensured al amortized cost using the effective interest {*EIR"y method, The computation of smortized cost is
sensilive fo the inputs i EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life of the financial insirument. Changes in
aesumplions about these inputs could affect the reported vakie of financial instruments.

Classificarion of property a3 inve siment roperti ar invemiary

Investment property comprises land and buildings, principally conmercial properties, that are not occupied substantialty for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation,
These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business,

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and commercial property that the
Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction or upen completion of construction,

Operating legse commitments - Company as lezsor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio, The Company has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such 25 the lease term not constiuting & major part of the ceonomic 1ife of the
eommercial property and the fair value of the aseet, thar it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and aceounts
for the confracts as operating leascs,

Initial diréct cost recognised a3 an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

23 Covid-E9 pandeme

The Company ' management has considered the possible cffects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic on the carrying value of assets includ ing
investment property and inventories. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions becanse of
this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements bas used internal and extemal sources of information to assess
the expected future performance of the Company. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on the current
estimates, the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as reflected in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, are fully recoverable.

Due 1o the prevailing circumstances and having regard 1o the Company's engemne discussians with its lessees for modification of existing lease
contracts, the Company has recognised lease income on best estimate basis in accordance with Ind AS 116,

Further, the Company's management bas also made assessment of the progress of construetion work on its ongoing projects during the period of
lockdewn and has concluded that the same was only a temporary slowdown in sotivities and has accordingly capitafised/fnventorised the bornywing
cinsls inerred in accordance with Ind AS 23,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company Bas incurred loss of Bs, 15,180 takhs {March 31, 2021 Bs. 1,819 lakhs) and has gocumulated
tosses of Rs. 17,775 lakhs as at March 51, 2022 {(Mareh 31, 2021: Rs. 2,593 Jakhs). During the current year, the Company has received the financial
support from s mvesiors by way ol tresh debenture subseription, The Company is in the initil phase of i feasing -and. real esfate development
operations and i ability to conlinue 25 a going concern is based on esiablishing profitable operations, availing unutilised bank bomowing limits and
obtaining continuing fnancial support (rom ils investons.

The Company s management has ulso estimaled the fumre cash fows for the Company with the possible effects thal may resull from the Covid-19
pandzmic and does nol foresee any adverse impact in realising its assets and in mecting its liabilities as and when they fall due, The actual impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of appraval of these financial statements,
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&1 Froperty, plant and equipment

Office ;
Eguipment Fotal

Cosl

At April 1, 2020 2 2

Additions - =

At March 31, 2021 2 2

Additions - £

At March 31, 2022 2 i
Depreciation

At April 1, 2020 - -

Charge for the year ] 1

At March 31, 2021 1 1

Charge for the vear® - -

At March 31, 2022 1 |
MNet book value

At March 31, 2021 1 1

At March 31, 2022 ] 1

* Depreciation charge for the year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs, 45,070

Naote:
L Refer note 12 for details of Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowings.

32 lovestment Property

Freehold  Building Orther assets forming part of building Total
Land Electrical  Furniture Plant &  Computer  Office
instaflation & & Fixtures Machinery  hardware cquipment
equipment ¥
Cost
At April 1, 2020 - - - - - - - -
Additions 39197 29,540 9 866 L 063 LTI 117 LOTD 1 4R6R0
At March 31,2021 39,197 80,649 S 866 1063 7,718 117 078 1.48.680
Additions - 4,950 1,698 Ble 4931 13 244 B.662
At March 31, 2022 39.197 04,599 11,564 188 8.649 130 1314 157,342
Bepreciation
At April §, 2020 - - - - - = . B
Chargge for the year - 12 7 I & - I 25
Al March 31, 2021 - 12 7 ! 4 - 1 25
Charge for the vear - 4 604 2889 328 1,438 6 510 9,945
At Mavch 31, 2022 - 4,010 2,996 320 1442 Té 511 9970
Met book value (A)
At Mareh 31, 2021 39,197 8637 0.850 1,062 7,714 17 LOG9 P ASGSS
At March 31, 2022 39,197 89,983 8.568 1,560 7,207 54 BO3 147372

* Depreciation charge for compuier hardware for vear ended March 31, 2021 15 Rs 20,246,

Initial direct cosis incurred in negoiiating and arranging an operating lease (B)=*
At March 31, 2021 1,951
At Mareh 31, 2022 1,805

Ionvestment property vatue (A+B)
At March 31, 2021 t,50,606
At March 31, 2032 149,177

** Amortisation of inidial direct costs over the bease wem is ingheded under Brokerage and commission Expenses in Mote 25 = Ciher Expenses,
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3.2 Investment Property {continued)

Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rental income derived from investment properties {including maintenance services) 10,528 #
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investmenl property generating (1,803} -
rental income

Drirect operating expenses (including repairs &nd maintenance) that did not generate rental income {322} -
Profit arising from investment propertics before depreciation and indirect expenses 8403 -
Less: Depreciation & amortisation expense (9,645) (25)
Loss arising from investment propertics before indireet expenses (1,542 {25)

The Company's investment propesty consist of anc commercial property in Chennai, India The management has determined that the investment property
consist of office property based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property,

Refer note 12 for details of Investment property pledged as security for borrowings.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no coniractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop
mvesiment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancerents, excepts as disclosed in note 12 and 28(b).

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for helding any bénami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, [988 and rnales made thercunder.

Fair valoe of investment property: March 31,2022 Mareh 31, 2021
propercy

OMfice property 200 81 2,08,307

The valuations are performed by an independent external valuer, who specialises in valuating these types of investment properties and such valuer is not a
registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation} Rules, 2017,

The fair value of investment properties is primanily based on discounted cashflow method (DCM?) and classified as level 3 fair value in the fair value
higrarchy due 1o the ute of enobservable inputs, There has been no change in valuation techniques used since prior year,

Description of valuation techniques nsed and key inputs to valuation on investment properties as at March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021

Investment property  Valuation Significant observable inputs Range
techuigue (weighted average)
Office properly DCF -Estimaled rental value per sq. L per month Rs 80 -Rs. 82
method -Remt growth pa. 5%
-Diseount rate 0%
-Vacancy rame 5%

Under the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit
o terminal value, This method invelves the projection of a series of cash Nows on @ seal estale properly interest, To this projected cash Now series, 2
market-derived discount rate is applicd to cstablish the present value of the income sirenm associated wilh the asset.

The duration of the cash fows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are detenmined by evenis such as renl reviews, lease renewal and related re-
letting, redevelopment, or refurbishment, The appropriate duration is typically driven by market behaviour that is a chargcteristic of the class of real estate
property. Periodic cash flow it typically estimated as gross income, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance cost and
other operating and management expenses, The series of periodic nel operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the
cnd of the projection period, is then discounted,

Significant increases/ (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth per annum in isolation would result in a significantly highes! (lower) fair value
cf the properties. Significont incrsnses {devreases) in discount mie (ond axit yickd) in isolation would veeuliin o sigreificantly kowor (higher) firvalue:
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33 Capital work-in-progress ("CWIP')

Investment
property under Total
—tonistruction
Al April 81, 2020 LIT,276 117,276
- Additions {subsequent expenditure) during the year 13,917 33,937
- Capitalised during the vear (1,49 58D {1.49.680)
At March 3, 2021 1,533 1,533
- Additions {subsequent éxpenditure) during the vear 9785 9,785
- Capitalised during the venr {8.662) {8,662)
At March 31, 2022 1656 2656

Refer note 12 for details of Investment property under contruction pledged as security for horrowings.

Fair Value Disclosure

The Company has determined that the fair value of the investment propesty under consideration is not reliably measurable and expects the fair value of
the property to be relizbly measurable when construction is complete, Accordingly, the Company will measure and disclose the fair value of the
investrvent property when the construction is completed and is fair valie becomes reliably measurable.

Capitalised borrowing costs
The amount of barrewing costs capitalised duging the year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs. 203 lakhs (March 31, 2021 - Rs, 10,933 lakhs). The rate used
to determing the amount of borrowing costs eligible forcapialisation was 7-12%, which is the effective interest rate of the wnderlying bormowing.

CYIF Ageing Schedule
Amount in CWIP for o period of
<1 Year -2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
March 31, 2022
Projects in progress K123 1031 5300 2 2,656
Projects temporarily suspended . 5 . . .
Total L1323 1,031 500 2 2,656
March 31, 202§
Projects in progress 1,031 3040 - 2 1.533
Projecis temporarily suspended H 3 5 -1 i
Total 1,031 S0H) - 2 1,533
4 Intangible Assets
Litense Total

Cost

At April 1, 2020 . -

Additions 1.000 1,000

At Mareh 31, 2021 1,000 1.000

Additions . 4

At March 31, 2022 Lo LODo.
AmpriiEntion

At April 1, 2020 - -

Charge for the yoar® - -

At March 31, 2021 =

Charge for the vear 100 100

At March 31, 2022 1K 100
Mt boak value

At March 31, 202 1.000 1,000

At March 31, 2002 a0 LTI

FAmostization charge for the year ending March 31, 2021 15 Rs, 27,397

o

Crther financinl assels
{unsecured, considered pond)

Mon-Current Current
3 1
Interest accrued and oot due on deposits 192 52 54 5
Margin money deposits with banks® &,560) 2218 -
Ln-balled lease ncome 2 885 . 1,194 -
2,637 2,270 1,248 5

*Margin money deposits have been made towands barreswings; letior of credit and bank guaraniee facilities availed by the Company from banks Refer
note 12 For details of depesits pledged as security for bormwings
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(1]

Other assety
{unsecured, considered gomd)

Supplier advances
Prepaid expenses
Balances with statutory / government authorities

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisahle value)

Project matessals {refer note 20)
Waork-in-progress (refer note 18.4 and 21)

HNotes

MNon - Current

Current

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

. 2 140 417

< 329 1,302 41
43 266 . -
43 505 1,442 458

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021

2 =
42,007 34,031
42,009 34,031

I, During the vear ended March 31, 2022, Rs. 595 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.127 lakhs) was recognised as a reversal of loss towards inventories carried
2. Refer note 12 for details of inventories pledged as security for borrowings.

Trade receivables {unsecured)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade receivables - considered good 3957 GG
Trade receivables - credit imypaired - 9

3057 209
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtiul dehts)

Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Taotal trade receivables 3,957 909
Trpde Beceivabie Ageing Schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
<6 6 Months  1-2 Years 2 -3 Years Muore than Tuotal

March 31, 2022

Undisputed Trade Receivables - eonsidered good 1,554 1,748 278 317 - 3,957
Lindisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired ¥ - - - "
Tatal 1,554 1,788 TH 337 z 3,957
N 2021

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 733 145 3 - 409
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - . . = - =
Total 733 145 31 - - a0

Naotey

1, Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are geserally on terms of upto 30 days,

2, Reefer note 12 for details of trade receivables pledged as soeurity for borrowings,
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9.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
= in current accounts®

- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

2,493 1,062
1,332 2,784
3,835 1846

* Includes Rs. 1,622 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 445 lakhs) held in bank account refating to Company's ongoing real estate project registered under Real
Estate Regulation and Development Act, 2016 and are to be utilised for project specific purposes,

Mote:

As a1 March 31, 2022, the Company had available Rs. 75,830 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.1,08,1 18 lakhs) of undrawn committed bomowing facilitics,

Changes in liabilitics arising from lnancing activities:

MNon-current Current Fevent
Particulars portion portion of atermet and Total
of borrowings borrowings elk duc_ o
horrowings
Balance as at April 1, 2020 106,096 - 23,505 1,29,601
Finance cost inventorised/ charged off - - 2119 2,119
Finange cost capitalised - - 10,933 10,935
Cash inflows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings a6,442 - . H6,442
Cash ouiflows
Repayment of non-current borrowinps {39,695) - £ (39,695)
Interest paid - - {5,730% (5.730)
Chers* {17.237) 17,237 - -
Met debt as at March 31, 2021 1,15,606 17,237 30,829 163,672
Finance cost inventorised! charged off - - 14477 14,477
Finance cost capitalised - - 203 203
Cash inflows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 31,524 - - 31,524
Cazh outflows
Repayment of non-current borrowings (18,734} - - (18,734}
Interest paid - - (3.951) (5.911)
Oithers? 14.278 (14.278) ; :
MNet debt as at March 31, 2022 142,674 2,959 39,598 1,85,231 |
* Dthers indicates the effect of movement in reclassification of non-current portion of borrowings 1o current basis the balance repayment period.
9.2 Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalenis
Mar 1 1 1
Balances with banks:
- Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months bt not more than 12 months 5,343 13
- Margin money deposits 6,560 2218
L9203 2231
Less: Margin money deposits with banks with banks disclosed under non-current financial assets (rofer note 5) {6,560) (2,218)
5,343 13
Bieak up of financial assels carcica al amoriised cosi
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade reccivablos (now §) 3557 Hiw
Cash and cash equivalents (note 9.1) 3,825 31,346
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalenis (note 9.2} 3343 i3
(her Mmancial assets (note 3) 10,885 2,275
Total finnncial asscls carried at amartised cost 24,010 7,643
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10 Share capital

Aunthorised share eapital March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Mos, (in lakhs)  Rs inlakhs  Nos. (in lakhs)  Rs. in bakhs
Class A Equity shares of Rz 10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year | I I {¢]
Changes during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the vear | 14 1 10
Class B Equity shares of Rs.10 cach:
Balance at the beginning of the year 624 6,240 624 6,240
Changes during the year - - e -
Balance at the end of the vear 624 6,240 624 fi, 240
Class C Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance st the beginning of the vear 622 6,220 622 6,220
Changes during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 622 6,220 612 6,220
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("COPS") of Rs, 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year . 2 = 2
Changes during the year - - -
Balance ot the end of the vear ) z L 2
* Represents 23, 100 nos. of CCPS (March 31, 2021; 23,100 nos, of CCPS)
Issued, subscribed and Fully paid-up share capital March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Nos. (in lakhs) s inlakhs  Nos. (in lakhs)  Bs. in lakhs
Class A Equity Shares of Rs, 10 cach
Balance at the heginning of the year 1 1] 1 10
Changes during the vear - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 1 13 1 1
Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Batancs a1 the beginning of the year 623 6,230 623 6,230
Changes during the year - - - .
Balanece at the ead of the vear 623 6,230 623 6,230
Class C Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the vear 622 6217 622 6217
Changes during the year & - - -
Balance at the end of the year 422 6217 622 6217
Total share capital
Balance ol the beginning ol the year 1,248 12,457 i, 246 [2.457
Changes during the vear - - " B
Balance at the end of the year 1,246 12457 1,246 12,457
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Share capital (Continued)

Terms! rights attached to equity shares
The Company has 3 classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each per share, All rights, privileges and conditions are in accordance with the
Invesiment Agreements,

Clasz A equity shares

Euch holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Mo dividends and other distribution would be made to the share holders, except in case of
liquidation of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, any distributions to the shareholders shall be in the manner as set out in the
investors agreements,

Class B equity shares

The holder of cquity shares do not have any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees in accordance with the Investment
Agreements. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. In event
ef liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled 10 receive distributions as preseribed under the Investment Agreements. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

Class C equity shares

The holder of equity shares do not have any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees in accordance with the Invesiment
Apreements. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting, In event
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be éntitled to receive distributions as preseribed under the Investment Agreements. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Terms of CCPS

CCPS were issued during the period ended March 31, 2016 at par carrying a comulative dividend rate of 0.01% per annum. The holder of CCPS may at
any Lime prios to the expiry of 20 years from the issuance exercise the option o convert CCPS 1o Class C equity shares. | (one) CCPS would be converted
to 10 (ten) Class C equity shares, The options {including conversion) under the CCPS shall be exercised solely in accordance with the Investors
Agreements and the Articles, The holder has offered to convert the instrument on March 31, 2024, The presentation of Hability and equity portions of
CCPS is explained in the summary of significant accounting policy.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Nos. (in lakhs)  Rs, in lakhs  Nos (in lakhs)  Rs in lakhs

Brizade Entcrorises Limited. the holdine company

Class A equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid *# 5 b 5

Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 623 6,230 623 6,230
=% 51,000 nos, of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2021: 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)
{b) Dretails of shares held by promoters:

Mo of shares st the  Changes during Mo, of shares at % holding of % Change
heginning of the the year the end of the okl shares during
VEar YEar the year
Mes. {in lakhs) Muos. (in fakhs)  Mos, (in lakhs) % holding ¥ change

Class A Equity shares of Rs, 010 each fully paid
Heeo Caspia Pie Lid R - # 9% -
Brigade Enterprises Limited - - Ll 51% =
# 49000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2021 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)
#2 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shares {March 31, 20218; 51,000 nos. of Class A cquity sharcs)
Class B equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Brigade Enterprises Limited 623 - 623 100%, -
Class C equity sheres of He 10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Ple Lid 622 - o2 1005 -
feco Caspa Pre Lid ey - paade 1004 -

#8% 23,100 nos. of CCPS (March 37, 2021 23,100 nos. of CCPS)
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te) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Mos. {in Iakhs) %o holding Mo, (in lakhs) % holding
Class A Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Reco Caspia Pre Lid ¥ 49% ¥ 49%
Brigade Enterprises Limited . 5i% - 5%

* 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2021: 49,000 nos. of Class A equity shares)
*# 51,000 nos, of Class A equity shares (March 31, 2021: 51,000 nos. of Class A equity shures)

Class B equity sharves of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Brigade Enterprises Limited 623 10095 623 100%
Class C equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Reco Caspia Pre Lid G2 100% 622 R
Reco Caspia Pie Lid e 100%% i 100%%

*b® 23,000 nos. of CCPS (March 31, 2021; 23,100 nos. of CCPS)

(d} Shares reserved Tor issue ander oplions
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of debentures, refer note 12. Further, for details of equity shares reserved for issse on conversion of
CCPS, refer above,

Orther equity

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity component of compound financial instruments

Balance al the beginning of the vear 10 10
Changes during the year - ’
Balance at the end of the year (A) 10 1l

MNote: Equity component of eompound financial instruments (2. CCPS) represents the residual amount after deducting from the fair value of the
instrument as-a whaole the amount separately determined for the liahility component and tax effect thereon.

Bebenture Redemption Rescerve

Balance at the beginning of the year 15 15
Changes during the year . 2
Balance at the end of the vear (B) 15 15

Mote: Debenture redemplion reserve is ereated out of free reserves with respect 1o redeemable debentures.

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 4
Changes during the year

Bulance at the end of the year (C) 4 o
Mote: General roserve represents amounts transferred from debenture redemption reserve on redemption of debentures, -

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the boginning of the vear (2595 £rre)
Total comprehensive income for the year {15,180 (1819
Balance at the end of the yvear {I1) {¥7.775) {2.595)

Total oiher equity (A+R+O+00) {17, 746) {3.566)
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12 Borrowings

March 3 2021
Mon-current Borrowings
Debentures {Unsecured)
2.37,55,200 (March 31, 2021 - 2,37,55.2000 12% A scries fully convertible debentires ("FCD'y of Rs, 100 each 23755 F3.355
{unzecured) (refer note (1))
2,37,64 800 (March 31, 2021 - 2,37,64,800) 12% A series oplionally convertible debentures ('OCDY) of Rs. 100 each 23,765 23,765
(unsecured) {refer note (ii))
5.00,000 (March 31, 2021 - 5,00,000) 12% Al series FCD of Rs. 100 cach (unsecored) (refer note {1if)) 500 500
500,000 (March 31, 2021 - 5,00,000) 12% ATl series OCD of Rs. 100 cach {unsecurcd) (refer note (iv)) 500 00
153,00,000 {March 31, 2021 - 15,00,000) 12% AlZ series FCD of Rs. 100 each (unsecured) (refer note (v)) 1,500 1,500
15,00,000 (March 31, 2021 - 15,00,000) 12% A12 scrics OCD of Rs.100 each (unsecured) {refer note {vi}) 1,500 1,500
60,00,000 (March 31, 2021 - 60,00,000) 12% A serics Mon convertible debentures (NCDY) of Rs.100 each 6,000 6,000
{unsecyred) (refer note (vii))
30,00,000 (March 31, 2021 - 30,00,0000 12% B series NCD of Rs. 100 cach {unsecured) (refer nate (viii)) 3,000 3,000
1,00.00,000 {(March 31, 2021 - 1,00,00.000) 12% B (1) serics NCD of Rs, 100 each {unsccured) (refer note (ix)) 108, 0 10,000
70,00,000 (March 31, 2021 - 70,00,000) 12% B (1) series NCD of Rs. 100 cach {unsecured) {refer note (x1) 7,000 7,000
S0,00,000 (March 31, 2021 - Nil) 12% C series NCD of Rs. 100 each {unsceured) (refer note xi) 5,000 .
Liability Component of Compoond Financial Instrumenis (Unsecured)
Compulsorily Convertible Prefetence Shares (refer nate 109 g g
Term loan (secured)
Term loan from banks (refer note xii) 63,104 55314

145,633 1,312,843

Less: current maturities of nop-current borrowings - disclosed under the head "Current Borrowings”

Term loan from banks {2,959 {17.237)
Tuotal non-current borrowings 142,674 1,15,606
Current Borrowings
Term loan from banks & financial instiations 2559 17,237
Taotal 2,959 17123"."

Moite: Refer below notes for details,

12 Borrowings (continued)
Mates:

i} A series FCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum; These are mandatorily convertible to into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue ie. March 09, 2016, however the Company may at-any time prior Lo the expiry of 20 vears convert the A series
FCD inte Clags C equily shares. 1 {one) A Series FCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class C equily shares, The conversion of the A series FCD shall be
solely in aceordance with the Invesiment Agreemcnis and the Articles, The Company has offered to convert andior redeem the instrument on March 31,
2024,

ity A series OCID have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annom. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares at the
expiry of 20 vears from the date of its 15sue e March 09, 2016, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 vears canver the A series
OCE into Class B equity shares. | (one) A Series OCD would be converted 1o 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares, The conversion of the A series OCD shali
be solely in accordance with the Investment Agreements and the Anicles. The Company has offered to convert andfor redeem (he instrument on March 31,
2024,

it} A1l series FOD have been issued at par carrying an interest rite of 12% per annum, These are mandatorily converiible (o into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of ils issee e, January 27, 2017, however the Company may al any {inié pricr {0 the cxpiry of 20 vears converl the Al
serics FCD into Class C equity shares. 1 (one) ALl Series FOD would be comverted to 10 (Ten) Class C equity shares, The conversion of the All seres
FOD shall be sobely in accordance witl the Investment Agreements amd the Ariicies, The Company has offered to convers andfor redeem the instrument on
Mlarch 31, 2024,

iv} All series OCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per minum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares al
the expiry of 20 vears from the date of iis issue i.c. January 27, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the
ALl senes DCD mnto Cless B equity shares. | {one) ATl Serics OCD would be converted to 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares. The conversion of the All
series CQCD shall be solely in aecordunee with the Investment Agreements and the Articles, The Company has offered to convert andfor redeem the
instruntent on March 31, 2024,

v) A2 series FOD have been issucd at par carrying an interest rate of 12%6 per annum. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class C equity shares at the
expiry of 20 years from the date of its issue fe. Apeil 06, 2017, however the Company may at any lime prior io the expiry of 20 years converl the A12
series FCIY inte Class C equily shares. | (one) A2 Senies FCD would be converied 1o 10 (Ten) Class C equity shases. The conversion of the A12 series
FCDshall be solely in accordance with the Investiment Agreements and the Articles. The Company has offered to convert andfor redeem the instrument on

March 31, 2024,

i} A12 series OCD have been issued ak par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annuin. These are mandatorily convertible to into Class B equity shares

piry of 20 years from the date of ils fssue i.e. April 06, 2017, however the Company may at any time prior to the expiry of 20 years convert the A12

M3 ke Class B oequity shares, | {ene) AT2 Serfes OCD would be converled to 10 (Ten) Class B equity shares, The conversion of the A12 series

I e sobely in accordance with the Invesiment Agrecments and the Articles. The Company has offercd to convert andfor redeem the ifistrament on

, 2024,
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12 Borrowings (continued)

vii) A serics NCD have been issued at par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of
3 years from the date of ils issue te., April 24, 2019, The redemption of A Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD

agreement,
viii) B series NCD have been issued at par carrving an interest rate of 12% per annum. These are non-converlible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiry of

3 years from the date of ils fssue ie., Pebruary 17, 2020, The redemption of B Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD

agreement.
ix) B (1) series NCD have been issucd at par carrying an interest rate of | 2% per annum. These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiny

ol 5 years from the date of its issue Le., August 27, 2020. The redemption of B {1} Serics NCID shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the
MCD agreement,

x) B ([1) series NCD have been issued st par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum, These are non-convertible and mandatorily redeemabie at the expiry
of 3 years from the date of its ssuc ie., January 16, 2021, The redemption of B (I} Series MCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the
NCD agreement.

xiy C geries NCD have been 1ssued al par carrying an interest rate of 12% per annum. These aré non-convertible and mandatorily redeemable at the expiny of
5 years from the date of 15 issue ic., May 18, 2021, The redemption of C Series NCD shall be solely in accordance with the provisions of the NCD
agreement,

xii} Term loan from banks
- Term loan of s, Mil (March 31, 2021 - Rs.15,245 lakhs) is primarily secured by way of mortgage of project land and carries intesest rate in the range of

9-10%. The loan has been repaid fully en April 02, 2021

- Term loans of Rs.63,104 lakhs (March 31, 2021 - Rs39,694 Lakhs) are primarily secured by way of equitable mortgage of project land, building,
iovable property, plant and equipment and investment property and charge on deposits and future lease rentals, The loans carry interest rare in the range
of 7-8% and are repayeble in 156 monthly instalments commencing from June 2021 w Tune 2034,

- Term loan of Rs, Nil (March 31, 2021 - Rs.375) is primarily secured by way of equitable mongage of project land measuring 5285 acres and building
to be constructed thereon and assignment of future receivables from the project. The loan carrics interest rate of 10%. The loan has been pre-paid during

the year,
xiii} There are no sanctioned working capital limits from banks or Anancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the

year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31 2021,

13 Other financial liabilities

MNon-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Lease deposits 2,560 2,827 EE) 2
Capital creditors
- Pavable to related parties (note 299 - - 114 542
- Pavable to other partics (refer note 28{ci(ii) - - 8,567 7,861
Imterest acermied and not due
= Payable to related parties {note 29) - - 3% 508 30,825
- Pavable to other parlies = 3 & 4
Oither payables - 143 -
Total other financial liabilities 2,560 2527 48,461 30,234
e
S % Bggs
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14

15

Income Tax
a) Deferred tax March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax ffabifites:
Deferred tax on accounting for compound financial instruments, net 4
4 4
Motes:
1. Amount of deferred tax assets nol recognised in the balance sheet:
= Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% of accumulated losses® 5,187 756

* The unused tax fosses can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year in which the
logs was firsl computed and would expire iF nog utilised starting from Mnancial year 2024-25 1o 202930,

2. The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (the Ordinance”) provides an option to domestic companics fo pay income-tax at a lower rate of
29:12% instead of the normal rate of 29.12%, il it opls for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Company has made an
assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and has decided to not opt for the lower tax rate of 29,12%. Consequently, the Company has continued to
measure the current and deferred taxes at the normal rate of 29,12%.

b) Tax expense
The major compenents of income tax expense for the vear ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:
Statement of profit and loss

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit or loss section

Current tax

Current income tax charge 15 -
Deferred 1ax . =
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or loss 15 &

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Accounting profit{loss) before income tax (15, 163) {1,819}
Tax on accounting profit!{loss) at statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2021: 29.12%) {4,418 {530}
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised 4,431 530
Tax expense reporied in the Statement of profit or loss 15 -

Trade payables - Corrent

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade pavables
- Total putstanding duees of micro enterprizes and small enterprises (refer note below) I -
- Total cutstanding duwes of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enferprises
- Payable to related parties (note 29) Jld 114
- Payable to other parties 1,273 1,368
179 L6832

Details of dues to miceo and small enterprises as delined vader the MEMED Act, 20006

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
The principal amount remaining unpaid o any supplier I “
The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid 1w any supplier - -
The amotnt of interest paid by the Company along with the amount of the payments made (o the supplier beyond the - -
appointed day.
The smount of interest due and payabie for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid bul beyond . -
the appointed day during the yvear),

The amount of intgrest accrued snd remaimmg unpaid & the end of the vear, - -
The amount of further tnterest remaining due and paveble for the carliér vears, - -
1 4

Mote: The above disclosure has been made based on the information available with the Conpany
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Trade Payable Ageing Schedule:

As at March 31, 2022 Unhilicd Outstanding for following periods from duoe date of payment Total
and <6 6 Months 1-2 years >3 vears
Motdwe  Months - 1 Year
Total oustanding dues of micro enferprises 3 1 & a & 5 |
and small emterprises
Total oustanding dues of creditors clher
than micro enterprises and small
CTUATRrSES
- Payable to related partics - 77 478 10 3 - 518
- Payable to other partics 3o 186 471 250 12 44 1,273
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and - - - = - & »
small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than - - - - x "
micro ehterprises and small enterprises
3o 264 #90 260 15 44 1,791
As at March 31, 2021 Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
ani =6 6 Months - More than 3
Notdue  ponths 1 Year 13 yeurs Vears
Todal outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs - - - “ - % 2
ard small emterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
emlerprises
- Pavable o related parties = 108 3 3 2 3 34
- Payable 1o other porties M 1257 25 Ha 17 25 1.368
Disputed dues of micre enterprises and - - - - - - -
small enterprises
Disputed dues of ereditors other than - i = x = " ,
miicro enterprises and small enterprises
34 1,565 18 13 17 25 1,682

Bresk np of financial liabilitics carried st amortised cost

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings (non-current) (note 123 1,42,674 115,606
Current maturities of non-curreént borrowings disclosed under the head "Cuorrent Bommowings" {note 12) 2959 17,237
Trade pavables (current) {note 17) 1,792 1,682
Chher current financial liabilities (note 13) 48,461 39234
Cher non- current financial lizbilities (rote 13) 2.560 2827
Total financial liahilitics carvied at amortised cost 1,98.445 176,586
16 Other current liabilities
MNon-corrent Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31 2 Mar 1

Advance from customers - - - 5
Deferred revenue (refer noie 18) - - 25,868 3,360
Lease income received in advance 281 - 293 2224
Statutory dues payable - - 33 349
(thers - - 116 116

281 - 26,59 R254

17 Short term provisions

Provision for loss contracts®

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

230

T80

780

*Represents provision made towards contragets in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the sconomic benefits

¢xpected fo be received under it

Details of provision (o loss contraces is as below:
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Provision made during the year

ance at the end of the voar

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

T 148
156 Hh3z
930 TRO
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18.2

18.3

154

12

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers
=Revenue from maintenance scrvices

Income from leasing

Disageregated revenue information

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

i3

33
10,495

10,528

Set oul below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers by liming of transfer of goods or services:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue fiom maintenance sérvices - Recognised over time

Contract balances

Trade recervables from contracts under Ind AS 115
Contract lizbilities

- Advance from customers

= Deferred Revenue

Trade receivables are generally on credil terms based on schedule of upto 30 days

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
33 -
33 =
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,806 B9
- 5
25,868 5,360
18674 6,264

Contract Habilities include advances received from customers a8 well as deferred revenue representing fransaction price allocated 1o

unzatisfied performance chligations.

Performance obligations

Aggregate amount of the transection price alloceted 1o the performance obligations that
Revenue to be recognised at a point in time

March 31, 2032

Muarch 31, 2021

25,968

5,360

* The entity expects to satisfy the performance obligations when (or as) the eontrol of thie underlying real estate units would be transferred

10 the customers.

Assets recognised from the tosts to obtain or fulfil 2 contract with a costomer

Inventories
- Work-in-progress
Prepaid expenses {represents brokerage costs pertaining to-sale of real estate units)

ther income

Interest income from fngncial assels ot amortizsed cost:
Bank depozity

Miscellaneaus income

Mureh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
42,007 24,031
1,161 339

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
321 123
11 14
332 137
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20 Cost of project materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the vear
Add: Purchases during the vear

Less: Inventories at the end of the vear
Cost of project materials consumed

21 {Ineresse) decrease in inventories of work-in-progress

Inveniories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress

Inventories at the end of the vear
Wiork-in-progress

11 Employee hencfits expense

Salaries, wiges and bonus

23 Finance costs

Interest charges
On bank bomrowings
Cm dehentures (refer node 29)
On CCPS {refer note 299
O lease deposils
O others
Other borrowing costs

Letss - Interest capitalised
Total®

* Gross of interest of Rs, 2,069 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 2,084 lakhs) inventorised to qualifving work in prosress,

24 Depreciation and amortication expense

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment (refer note 3.1)

Dreprecistion of investment property (reier note 3.2)
Amortization of mtangible aszets (refer e 4)

*Amortization charge for the vear ending March 31, 2021 Rs. 27,397,

March 31, 2022 M 1, 2021
- 14
202 403
202 417
2 5
200 417
022 arch 31, 2021
34,031 29,981
(A 34,031 Xa.081
42.007 34,031
{BY 42,007 34,0351
Total (A-B) (7,976} (4.050)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
13 i
13 3
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
4315 4,863
9827 8148
2 2
452 -
12 -
1z 4l
14,680 13,054
{203} (10935}
14,477 2119

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
. 1
9,945 25
100 .
RN Al
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25 Other expenses

Legal and professional fees
Payments 1o auditors
Architect & consultancy fees
Lease oversight feez
Developmient co-ordinaticn Fee
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance:
Building
Cithers
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Properly tax
Advertisement and sitles promotion
Travelling and conveyancs
Communication cogls
Prowvision for contract loss
Brokerage and commission
Printing and stationery
Directors' sitting fees (refor note 29)
Security Charges
Miscellaneous expenses

(i} Payment to auditors {excluding Goods and Service tax):
As auditor:
Audit fee

Limited review

Other services

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

480 182
2 13
182 13
177 -
287 136
483 16
15 -
- 2
44 28
522 3
T8 -
199 19
41 H
] 4
150 632
824 -
T 2
5 4
15 2%
7 ]

354 1299

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

13 11
B -
1 2

2 e
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26 Ratio Analysis and its elements

. Ratio Current Ratio
Numerator Currenl Assels
Denominator Current Liabilities
Hatios/ Measures As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Assets (A) 57.824 39262
Current Liabilities (B) 80,761 67,187
Current Ratio (C) =(A) / (B) .72 058
% Change from previous yeas 23%
b. Ratio Del Equity Ratio
Mumerator Total Debt [represents non-current borrowings (including current maturities) + interest acerued on
borrowings]
Denominator Sharcholder's equity [represents total equity)
Ratios/ Measures As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tatal debt (A) 1.85,231 1:63,672
Shareholder's equity (B) (5,289) 9,89
Dbt equity ratio (C ) ={A) { (B) (35.02) 16.55
% Change from previous year -312%)]
Mote: During the current year, the Company has incurred losses on account of increase in depreciation and finance costs which has reduced
shareholder's equity. Hence the ratio has declined,
¢. Hatio Debl service covernge ralin
Mumerator Earnings available for debl semace
Denominator Debit service
Ratios/ Measures Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax {15,165) (1,519)
Add: Finance cost 14,477 2,119
Less: Finance costs inventorised {2,069) (2,084)
Earnings for debt service (4) {2,757) {1,784)
Repayment of non-current borrowings {18,734) {39.695)
Total Finance ¢osg 14477 2119
Debt serviee (B) (4,257} (37,576)
Debi service coverage ralio (C) = (A) /(1) .65 .05
% Change from previous year 126:4%

Mote; During the eurrent year, the Company has incorred losses 6n account of inercase in depreciation and finance costs which has reduced the

carnings for debt service. Henoe the tatio has declined.

d. Ratio Returm on equity [%6)
Numerator Restated loss after tax
Denominatoy Avilage Sharchilder’s Eguily
Rtios’ Measores Az at

‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit afier tax for the vear (A) (15,180} {LE1Y)
Opening sharcholder's equity (B) 9,891 11710
Closing shareholder's equity {C) {5,289 9,891
Average shareholder's equity [JiBIHC12] (1) 2,300 10,801
Beturn on equity [%6] (E) = (AW 100 HE0% -17%
%% Change from previous year 3817

Mote: During the current vear, the Company has incurred losses on account of mncrease in depreciation and finance costs which has reduced the

profit afler tax md sharelolder's guily, Hence the ratio has declingd,
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¢, Ratio Invemtary mrmover ratio

Mumerator Cosl of sales [Sub-contractor cost + Cost of project materials consumed + {Increasel decrease in

inventories of work-in-progress + finance cost and other expenses inventorised]
Denominator Average inventory
Ratios’ Measures As at

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Cost of sales (A) . %
Opening Inventory (B} 34,031 20905
Closing Inventory {C) 42,009 34031
Average inventory [{(B)+C)}/2] (D) 38,020 32,013
Inventory turnover ratio {E) = (4D & x
%o Change [fom previous year w
. Ratio Frade receivables turnover ratic
MNumerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables
Ratios! Measures As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations (A) 10,528 .
Opening Trade Receivables (B) G0 1
Closing Trade Receivables {C) 3,057 94
Average Trade Receivables [{{BHC)2] (D) 1433 544
Trade receivables turnover ratio (K5 = {A) /(1)) 4.33 -
% Change [rom previous vear | H)%a

Mate: Since entity started recognition of revenue from current year hence increase of 100%%,

g. Ratio Vrade payables turnover ratio
Numerator Total purchases {represents purchase of goods and services which is the aggregate of sub-contractor cost,
purchases of project materials and other expenses)
Denominator “werage trade pavables
Ratios! Measures As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Todal purchases (A) G468 3,841
Opening Trade Payables (B) 1,682 255
Closing Trade Payables (C) 1,792 1,682
Average Trade Payables [{[{BIHC2] (DY) 1,737 269
Trade payables turnover ratio (E) = (A) /(D) 5.45 397
% Change [rom previcus year 37.41%
Mote: The ratio has increased primarily on account of increased operations and change in trade payvable levels,
h, Ratio Mt capital tumover ralio
Mumerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Working capital (represents Current Assets - Current Liabilities)
Ratios! Measures As at
March i, 2022 Miarcih 31, 2021
Revenue from operations (A} 10,528 -
Working Capital (B} {32.537) (27.925)
Met capital turnover ratio {C ) = (AY (B) {0.46) -
% Change fTom previous year 00 %

MNote: Since entity started recognition of revenue from eurrent year hence inerease of 100%,
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k. Hatio Met prafit ratio [%h)
MNumerator Profit{Loss) for the year
Denomingtor Revenue from operations
Ratios/ Measures As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit{Lozs) for the year (A) (15,1800 (1B
Revenue from operations {B) 1,528 -
Net profit %] (C) = (A) £ (B)* 100 =1 44%% -
% Change from previowms year 10095
Mote: Since entity started recognition of revenue from current year hience Increase of 100%.

j- Hatio Return on capital employed [%4]
Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Depominator Capital Employved {represents Total equity + Total borrowings+ Interest accrued on borrewings)
Ratios’ Measures As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profity Loss) for the vear (A) {15, 180) (1,819
Add; Total tax expense (B) 15 -
Add: Finance costs (C) 14,477 2119
Earnings before interest and tax (D) = (A + (B) + (C) (GEE) 30
Total equity (E) {5.289) 9840
Currént and Mon-current borrowing (F) |.45,633 132,843
Interest acerued on borrowings (G 39,598 10,529
Capital Emploved (H) = (E) + () +{(3) 1,79.942 1,73,.563
Return on capital employed |%] (1= (D) / (H}*100 -0.38% 0.17%
% Change fTom previous year =321, 14%

Mode: The ratio has declined primarily on aceount of increase in losses for the year due to increase in depreciation and finance costs.

Mote: Retum on investment ratio iz not applicable to the Company.
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i)

iii}

)

25

Earnings/{ Loss) per share (EPS'")

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (lossVprofit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the (Toss)profit amributable 1o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
oulstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity
shares inlo equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and difuted EPS compulations:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Class A Class B Clags C Class A Class B Class
Nominal valse of equity share (in Rs.) 10 Io 10 i o 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Mos, in lakhs. )
Bazic {A) | 623 (22 i 623 622
Add: Potential equity shares upon conversion oft
=CCPS - - 2 - - 2
(B} R 5 2 - - 2
Diluted* {ATHB) 1 623 624 1 623 (2]
Profiv{Loss) considered for the caleulation of eamnings per share
Loss for the vear [84] - {7,742) {7.438) - (928) (491}
Earnings Per Share (1A
Basic . (12.43) (11.96) - {1.49) (1,43}
Diluted * : (12.43) (L1106} . (149 (1.43)

* During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the effects of potential equity shares are anti-dilutive, hence, the same has been ignored for
calculating dilutive loss per share.

Commitments and contingencies

i, Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessor

The Company has entered into operating leases (eancellable and non-cancellable) on its investment property portfolic consisting of cerlain office buildings
with varying lease terms of upto cight vears and with escalation and renewal clauses, All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the lease
rental on periodical basis. The Company s also required to maintain the properly over the lease tem.

Lease rentals recognised as an income in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income from leasing 10,495 -

als receivable under ;
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Within one vear 12,122 -
After one vear but not more than five vears 14,761 "
26883 :

b Other Commitments

(i} For commitments under Investor Agreements to equily sharcholders, preference shareholders and debenture holders, refer note 10 and note 12

(i1) As at March 31, 2022, the estimated amount of contracts (net of capital advance) remaining 1o be executed on capilal sccount not provided for was Rs.
269 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs, 2,583 lakhs).

& Contingent liabilities

(i} The Company had received i legal notice from o vendor demanding payment of compensation of Rs. 1,214 lukhs for procuring maximum permissible
Floor Space Index for development of Tond parcefs procured from such vendor. The Company does nod expect any payment in respect of the aforesaid
obligation’ claim and it s not probable that an outllow of resources will be required 1o seitle the same and hence. no priwision has heen made in the
financial statements in this regard.

{ii) The Company has initialed legal proceedings against its. vendor for non-performanee of the contractual terms by the vender and recovery of
consequential losses thereon, The vendor has subsequently Bled eomnter claim claiming losses and refund of Rs, 2,226 lakhs towards bank guarsnice
invoked by the Company and the maller i curvenily pending for arbitration. The Company is reasonably confident of a favourable outcome in respect of
the aforesaid matter bazed on the management’s cvaluation and the legal opinion abtained by the management, Accordingly, no adjustments have been
made in this rezacd i the accompanying financial stalements,

tHii) The Company has received a notics from the income tax depariment for the assessnient year 2006-17 with respeet 1o disallowance of certain expenses
o the geoands of lack of supporting documentation resuliing in demand of Rs 39 lakhs including inierest, The Company has appealed againsi the said
notice stating adequacy of supporting documentation maintained by the Company in this regand, However, the appeal was nol accepted by the Income rax
authority and the Company decided 1o not further pursee the matter, Conseguently, the Company made full payment of the demand amount including
interest and settled the matter. The management is of the opinion that the aforesaid matter will not have any funther impact on the financial statements of
the Company

{iv) The amount of outstanding bank guaranices as ot the vear-cnd is s, 3.904 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3,583 lakhs),

{v) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating 10 employee benefns during employment and post employment bencfits received Presidential
azsent in Sepiember 2020, The Code hes been published in the Gazette of India. Howewver, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
ilied and the linal rulesfinterpretation bave not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when 8 comes into effect and will
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29 Related Party disclosures

I. Names of related partics and related party relationship with whom transactions have been entered into:
[BEL']

Holding company

Enterprise having significant influence aver

the Company

Fellow Subsidiary

[Directors

Additional related parties as per Companics

Act, 2013

1i. Transactions with related parties:

Brigade Enterprises Lud

Reco Caspia Pie Lid
Reeo Iris Pie Lid

Brigade Hotel Ventures Lid.
SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Lid,

BCV developers Pvi, Lid,

WTC Trades & Projects Pyt Ltd

Meera Krshnakunsar
Mohan Parvatikar

Rashmi BV, Company Secretary & Chiel Financial Officer (w.e.f May 04, 2021)

Thirumanan R, Manager {w.e.{. August 05, 2020)
Amrutha Bhaskar, Company Secretary & Chiel Financial Officer (upto Dee 31, 2020)

['RCPLY
[RIPLY)

[BHVLY]
[SRPEHVL]
[BCVDPL]
[WTCPL]

Deseription of the nature of transaction

Name of related party

Dezcription of the refationship

Mar 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Adlotment of Non-Convertible Debentures  |BEL Holding Company 2,500 8,500
RIPL, Enterprise having signilicant 2,500 8,500
imfluemce over the Company
Interest on Debentures BEL Holding Company 4914 4,075
RCPL Emterprise having significant 3,091 309
influence over the Company
RIPL Enterprise having significant 1,822 983
influence over the Company
Interest-on compulsorily convenible RCPL Enterprise having significant 2 2
preference shargs influence over the Company
Expenscs cross charged o the conpany BEL Holding Conipany 333 293
SRPPHVL Fellow Subsidiary ] 1
BCYVDPL Fellow Subsidiary - 32
BHVL Fellow Subsidiary - 3
WTCPL Fellow Subsidiary 51 -
Lease oversizhi Fees BEL Halding Company 177 -
Brokerage and commission® BEL Halding Company 266 -
Sales commission {prepaid expenses) BEL Halding Company 352 224
Expenses cross charged by the company BEL Holding Company - I
WIILCTPL Fellow Subsidiary 245 -
Salaries, wages and bonus Amrutha Bhaskar Key Managerial Personael - i
Rashimi BY Key Managerial Personnel 13 -
Directors’ sitting fees Meera Krishnakumar Tircctor 2 Z
Mohan Parvatikar Director 2 2
Development co-ordination fees BEL llelding Company Thi G538

*Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease. Also refer note 3. 1.
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H1. Balances with related parties :

Description of the nature of transaction | Name of related party | Description of the relationship | Mar 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Debentures Cutstanding - OCD BEL Holding Comipany 25,765 25,765
Debentures Cutstanding - FCD RCPL Enterprise having significant 25,755 25,755

influence over the Company
Debentures Outstanding - NCD BEL Holding Company 15,500 13,000
Debenures Outstanding - NCD RIPL Enterprise having significant 15,500 13,000
influeneg over the Company
Equity Component of CCPS RCPL Enterprise having significant 11 1]
influence over the Company
Debt Component of CCT'S RCPL Enterprise having significant 9 9
influence aver the Company
Interest acerued but not due BEL Holding Company 20,280 15,858
RCPL Enterprise having significant 16,362 3,740
influgnce over the Company
RIPL Enterprise having significant 2,946 1,227
influence over the Company
Capital creditors BEL Holding Company 11% 543
Trade Payables BEL Holding Company 518 283
BCVDPL Feliow Subsidiary - 22
BHYL Feliow Subsidiary - 2
Notes:

I, The related party transactions made by the Company are on terms equivalent to those that prevail in army's length transaction. Outstanding
balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement ocours in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payvables.

2. In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the company with the provisions of scction 177 and 188 of companies act, 2013 where
applicable, and the defails have been disclosed ahove, as required by the applicable accounting standard,

3. Balary and other expenses cross charged to the company include reimbursement of remuneration to Mr, Thirumanan R, Manager - Rs, 17 lakhs,
{March 31, 2021 Rs. 22 Lakhs).
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30 Financial risk management object®ves and policies

The Company's principal financial liakdlities comprise borrowings, trade and other pavables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities 15 1o
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents thal
derive directly from itz eperations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks and
ensures that the Company's financizl risk activities are poverned by appropriate policies and provedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives,

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Nlows of a Mnancial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices, Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity! real-estate sk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with Noating inlerest rates

The Company is aflected by the price volatility of certain commaodities’ real ¢state Its operating sctivities require the cnpoing development of real
estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted 2 risk management strategy reparding commaodity’ real estare price risk and its
mitigation, The Company is subject 1o the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions,

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tables demanstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, The impaat
on the entity’s profit hefore tax is due 1o changes in the firvalue of financial assets and lighilities,

Particulars Changein interest | Effect on loss
rate hefore tax
March 31, 2022 +1% 384
1% {584)
March 31, 2021 +1%% 82
1% {82)

i, Credit risk

Credit risk 5 the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty defaults on its obligations. The Company's
exposure (o credit risk arises majorly from financial assets and trade receivables,

Other financial assets like bank balances are mostly with banks snd the Company does not expect any eredit risk with respect to these Tinancial
assets,

With respect to other financial assets, the Company has constituted teams 1 review the receivables on periodic basis and to take necessany
mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured recoivables hased on lifetime expected credit loss. At the balance
sheet dale, here was no significant concentration of cred risk and exposure thereon

k. Liguidity Risk

The Company's objective is 1o maiain 4 balance between continuity ol unding and Nexibility through the use of debentures and bank borrowings:
The table below summisrises the moturity profile of the Company's financial obilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Maturity period Mairch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial Habilities - Crirrent

Bormowings - Bank borrowings Within | vear 7319 20,231

Trade pavables Within | year 1;792 682

Other financial liabilitles Within | year 44.46| 107134
Financial Habilities - Non Currend

Berrowings - Bank borrowings iterwoen 1-15 years 7173 o 667

Borrovangs - ather borrowings Bepween |5 vears 147 20 1,05, 029

Other Dnancial habdlities {Lease deposits) Between 1-5 vears 3,183 2827
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Fair values
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities 1s included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used Lo estimate the fair values:

= Refer note 3.2 with respect to investment properties.

> Refer note 3.3 with respect to- investment properties under construction.

= The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, rade payables, and other financial assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to their shorl-lecm maturities,

= The management assessed that the carrying values of bank deposits, borrowings and other finaneial assets and liabilities approximate their fair
values based on eash Mlow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, creditworthiness of the customer and the risk
characteristics of the financed project, as applicable.

These finaneial assets and financial tabilities are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hicrarchy due to the use of unohservable inputs
as explamed above,

There have been no transfers bedween fevels during the year.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and Eair value of the Company's finangial instruments:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Carrying Value | Fair Value (Level 3) | Carrving ¥alue | Fair Value (Level 3)

Financial Assrts
Measured at at anovtised cost

Trade receivables 3087 3057 o5 809
Cash and cash egumivalents 3,825 3.825 3846 3,846
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,343 5,343 13 13
Other financial assets 18RS 10,883 2275 2375
Aszets for which air value diselosed
Measured af cost
Investment property (including under construction) 1,51,833 2,009,081 1,52,139 208,307

Financial Liabilities
Meazsured at ar amortised cost

Mom-current hormowings 142,674 1,42.674 1,135,606 1, E3,606
Current borrowings 2959 2,950 17,237 F7.237
Trade payables 1,792 L792 1682 1682
Other financial linbilities 51,021 31021 4206l 42,061

Capital management

The Company's abjectives of capital management is to maximize the sharcholder value, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the return o shareholders, issue! buyback shares or sell assets 1o feduce debL The Company manages its capital structure and
miakes adjustments in [ight of chenges i economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratie, which is net debt divided by total equity plus rict debt as below.

- Equity includes equity share capital & all other equily componemts aliributable 1o the equity holders

- Met Debt includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial labilitics, less cash and cash equivalents & bank balances other than cash and cash
cquivalents

March 31, 2022 Karch 31, 2021
Bomowings 1.42,674 1,015,606
Trade payahles 1,792 1.682
Other financial Habilities 51,021 42,61
Eess: Cash and cash equivalents & bark balances other than cash and cash cquivalents (9, 168) (38350
Met Debt (A) 186,319 1,55.490
Equity sharc capital 12457 12457
Other cquity (17.746) (2,366)
Equity (1) (5,289) 9,891
Equity plus net debi ({C=A+ 1) i,51,030 165,381
Gearing ratio ([B=A/C) 03% 94%

In order to achieve this overall ohiective, the Company s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure that it meets financial covenants

-atiached to the inlerest-hearing borrowings thil deline capital structure requirenients, Any signilicant breach in mesting the financial covenants would

allow the bank to call borrowings. There Bave been no breaches i the financial covenants of above-mentioned interest-hearing borrowings
Mo changes wene made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous yveass.
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34

Unhedged foreign currency cxposure

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade payables = 20
Capital creditors - 54
Tatal = a4

Mote: The Company is carrying liabilities towards Borrowings of Rs41,264 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.38,764 lakhs) and Interest on borrowings of
Rs. 19,308 lakhs (March 31, 2020: R, 14,967 lakhs), which are payable to forcign parlics. As per the contractual terms, the said lishilities are denominated
in Indian Rupees and will be settled in equivalent Foreign Currency, Hence, such labilities on the balance sheet will hiave no impact on profit and loss
account of the Company due to movemient in foreign exchange rates and accordingly, these are not disclosed above by the Company &= foreign currency
CXPOSUTE.

Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organized into 2 Strmegic Business Units (SBUs) based on risks and rates of retuen of the products and services
offered by those 3BLUs as per Ind AS 108 as follows!

- Real Estate; development and sale of real estate property

= Leasing: development and leasing of commercial property

The mianagement reviews operating resulis of SBUs separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.,
Also, the Company's inancing activities (including finance costs and finance incomc) and income taxes are managsd at corporate level and are not
allocated w cperating segments,

Transfer prices belween operating scgments are on an arm™s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties,

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Real Estate Leasing Total Real Estate Lusing Total

Revenue Mrom aperations - 10,528 10,528 . - -
Add; Other income - unallocable - - 132 - - 127
Tuotal incoine - 10,528 10860 - - 137
|Segment Profit! (Laoss) {962) {1,642} (2.604)| {1,687) (25 (1,712
L.ess: Finance costs (net of intesest inventorised) {12.408) (35)
Less: Other unallocable expenditure (4&3) (2109
Add: Oiher income (including interest income) i3z 137
Luoss hefore tax {15,165) (1,819}
Segment assets 46,106 1,58, 114 204,220 35,686 153,180 158,866
Add: Cash and bank balances 9,168 6,077
Add: Assets for corrent tax(net) 753 4%
Add: Other unallocable assets 6,850 324

2,20,991 195515
Sepment Habilitics 23,733 10,856 40,589 7.943 13,456 21,399
Add: Borrowings (including interest pecrued) 1,485,231 1.63.672
Add; Breferred tax liabilities (net) 4 4
Add: Liabilities for current fax (net) 27 s
Add: Other unallocable liabilities 429 549

2.26.280 L5624
Other information
Capital expenditure FE.447 18,447 33937 33,837

Capital expenditure consists of additions (o capital work-m-progressSnvesimenl property under constroction.
Current/Deferred taxes, borrewings and certain financial and nop-financial assets and liabilitics are considered as unallocated as they are plso managed on
a Company basis.

The Company is domiciled in India and all the non-current agsets of the Company are located in India.

o | . e
(e
o o

|




Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited
Mutes to Financial Statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in Indizn Rupecs Lakhs, exeepl ag otherwise stated)

35 Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has natified Compan ies {Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 o amend the
following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022,
(i} Onerous Contracts —Costs of Fullilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 17
(i) Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to Ind AS 103
{iit} Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Iniended Use — Amendments to Tnd AS 16
{ivhInd AS 121 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time adoper
(v} Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the ' 10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial labilities
(vi) Ind AS 41 Agricufture - Taxation in fair value measurements
The amendments are effcctive for annual reporting perinds beginning on or after | April 2022, The amendments are not expected to have & material impact
on the Company,

36 Other Statutory Information
{1} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction vet to he registered with ROC bevond the statutory period,

(i} The Company docs not have any transaction with companies struck off.

{iii} Mo funds have been advanced or loancd or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium of any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
1o of in any other persons or entitics, including foreign entities {“intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, tha
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Deneficiaries™) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

{iv} Mo Funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in ather persons or entilies identified in any manner
whatsoever by or an behalf of the Fonding Party (“Ulimate Beneficiaries”™) or previde any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(v) The Company does not bave any such ransaction which is not recorded in the hooks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acl, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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